TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY Kirksville 63501

OFFICIAL MINUTES
OF THE
BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Page 1

OPEN SESSION OF MEETING ON APRIL 15, 2020

The Board of Governors for Truman State University met on Wednesday, April 15, 2020, on the University campus in Kirksville, Missouri. The meeting was held in the President's Office located in McClain Hall 200. The open session of the meeting was called to order shortly after 3:30 p.m. by the Chair of the Board of Governors, Jennifer Kopp Dameron.

Participating via conference call in the meeting were six of the seven voting members: Sarah Burkemper, Philip J. Christofferson, Cheryl J. Cozette, Jennifer Kopp Dameron, Nancy Gingrich, and K. Brooks, Miller, Jr. Jim O'Donnell was unable to participate, and his absence was recorded as excused.

Also participating were all three non-voting members: David Lee Bonner and Mike McClaskey, the two out-of-state members, and Tiffany Middlemas, student representative.

Call to Order

Governor Dameron, Chair of the Board, called the meeting to order shortly after 3:30 p.m. and welcomed all in attendance.

A Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2020, of Truman State University, for the Purpose of Providing Funds to Refund Certain Outstanding Housing System Revenue Bonds of the University; Prescribing the Form and Detail of the Bonds and the Covenants and Agreements Made by the University to Facilitate and Project the Payment Thereof; and Prescribing Other Matters Relating Thereto

Governor Miller moved to waive the reading of the resolution. The motion was seconded by Governor Burkemper and carried by a unanimous vote of 5 to 0. Governor Dameron declared the motion to be duly adopted.

Governor Gingrich joined the meeting at 3:35 p.m.

Governor Cozette then moved the adoption of the proposed resolution. The motion was seconded by Governor Burkemper and carried by a unanimous vote of 6 to 0. Governor Dameron declared the motion to be duly adopted, and the Secretary designated a copy of the resolution as Exhibit A and noted that a copy of the resolution would be attached to the minutes as an exhibit.

Motion to Adjourn

There being no further business, Governor Miller moved that the meeting be adjourned. The motion was seconded by Governor Christofferson and carried by a unanimous vote of 6 to 0. Governor Dameron declared the motion to be duly adopted and the meeting adjourned shortly after 3:50 p.m.

arah Burkemper

Secretary of the Board of Governors

TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY Kirksville 63501

OFFICIAL MINUTES
OF THE
BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Page 2

OPEN SESSION OF MEETING ON APRIL 15, 2020

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes were approved by the Board of Governors on the 13th day of June, 2020.

Jennifer Kopp Dameron

Chair of the Board of Governors



RESOLUTION

OF

THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS

OF

TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY

ADOPTED APRIL 15, 2020

Authorizing:

\$15,245,000 HOUSING SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
	Title
	ARTICLE I
	DEFINITIONS
Section 101.	Definitions of Words and Terms
	ARTICLE II
	AUTHORIZATION AND SALE OF THE BONDS
Section 201.	Authorization of the Bonds
Section 202.	Security for the Bonds
Section 203.	Description of the Bonds
Section 204.	Designation of Paying Agent
Section 205.	Method and Place of Payment of Bonds
Section 206.	Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds
Section 207.	Execution, Authentication and Delivery of the Bonds
Section 208.	Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost and Stolen Bonds
Section 209.	Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds Upon Payment
Section 210.	Approval of Term Sheet and Sale of Bonds
	ARTICLE III
	REDEMPTION OF BONDS
Section 301.	Redemption of Bonds16
Section 302.	Notice of Redemption; Effect of Redemption
Section 303.	Selection of Bonds to Be Redeemed
	ARTICLE IV
I	ESTABLISHMENT AND RATIFICATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS
Section 401.	Establishment or Ratification of Funds
Section 402.	Administration of Funds and Accounts
	ARTICLE V
	APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS AND OTHER MONEYS
Section 501.	Disposition of Bond Proceeds and Other Moneys
Section 502.	Application of Moneys in the Costs of Issuance Fund
Section 503.	Redemption of the Refunded Bonds20

ARTICLE VI

APPLICATION OF REVENUES

Section 601.	System Revenue Fund	20
Section 602.	Application of Moneys in Funds and Accounts	
Section 603.	Transfer of Funds to Paying Agent	21
Section 604.	Deposits into and Application of Moneys in the Rebate Fund	
Section 605.	Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays	
Section 606.	Nonpresentment of Bonds	
	1	
	ARTICLE VII	
	DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT OF FUNDS	
Section 701.	Deposits of Moneys	22
Section 702.	Investment of Funds	
	ARTICLE VIII	
	PARTICULAR COVENANTS OF THE UNIVERSITY	
Section 801.	Performance of Duties	23
Section 801.	Legal Authority	
Section 803.	Rate Covenant	
Section 804.	Restrictions on Mortgage or Sale of System	
Section 805.	Operation of the System	
Section 806.	Occupancy	
Section 807.	Insurance	
Section 808.	Books, Records and Accounts	
Section 809.	Annual Budget	
Section 810.	Annual Audit and Operating Data	
Section 811.	Bondowner's Right of Inspection	26
Section 812.	Contract	26
Section 813.	Parietal Rules and Regulations	26
Section 814.	Tax Covenants	26
	ARTICLE IX	
•	ADDITIONAL BONDS	
Section 901	Prior Lien Bonds	27
Section 902.	Parity Bonds	
Section 903.	Junior Lien Bonds	
Section 904.	Refunding Bonds	
	ARTICLE X	
	DEFAULT AND REMEDIES	
Section 1001.	Acceleration of Maturity in Event of Default	29

Section 1002.	Remedies	29
Section 1003.	Limitation on Rights of Bondowners	
Section 1004.	Remedies Cumulative	
Section 1005.	No Obligation to Levy Taxes	
	ARTICLE XI	
	DEFEASANCE	
Section 1101.	Defeasance	30
	ARTICLE XII	
	AMENDMENTS	
Section 1201.	Amendments	31
	ARTICLE XIII	
	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	
Section 1301.	Notices, Consents and Other Instruments	
Section 1302.	Further Authority	
Section 1303.	Severability	
Section 1304.	Governing Law; Venue; Waiver of Jury Trial	
Section 1305.	Electronic Transactions	
Section 1306.	Effective Date	33
	Signatures and Seal	34
	Exhibit A - Form of Bond	
	Exhibit B - Term Sheet	

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF HOUSING SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2020, OF TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO REFUND CERTAIN OUTSTANDING HOUSING SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS OF THE UNIVERSITY; PRESCRIBING THE FORM AND DETAILS OF THE BONDS AND THE COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS MADE BY THE UNIVERSITY TO FACILITATE AND PROTECT THE PAYMENT THEREOF; AND PRESCRIBING OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, Truman State University is a state educational institution duly created, organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri (the "University") and now owns and operates a revenue-producing system of residence hall, dining room, social, and other revenue-producing facilities serving the University and its students (the "System," as hereinafter more fully defined); and

WHEREAS, under the provisions of Chapter 176 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended (the "Act"), the University, acting through its Board of Governors (the "Board"), is authorized to acquire, construct, erect, equip, furnish, operate, control, manage and regulate the System, and is authorized to issue and sell revenue bonds as defined in the Act in order to provide funds for the System; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act and resolutions adopted by the Board, the University has heretofore issued and as of the date of issuance of the Bonds, as defined below, will have outstanding the following series of revenue bonds payable out of the revenues derived from the operation of the System (as established by previous resolutions of the Board):

Series of Bonds	Date of Bonds	Amount Issued	Amount Outstanding
Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 (the "Series 2013 Bonds")	April 18, 2013	\$20,495,000	\$15,770,000
Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 (the "Series 2015 Bonds")	May 28, 2015	12,595,000	10,570,000
Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 (the "Series 2016 Bonds")	February 11, 2016	20,105,000	17,260,000

WHEREAS, to achieve certain economic savings, the University desires to refund, defease and pay all of the outstanding Series 2013 Bonds (the "Refunded Bonds"), and is authorized under the provisions of Sections 108.140(2) and 176.060 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended (the "Refunding Law"), to issue and sell refunding revenue bonds for such purpose; and

WHEREAS, the Board hereby finds and determines that, to provide funds for said purpose, it is necessary and advisable and in the best interest of the University and of its students to issue its Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Bonds"), pursuant to the Refunding Law; and

WHEREAS, immediately after the issuance of the Bonds and the application of the proceeds thereof, the Series 2015 Bonds and the Series 2016 Bonds (collectively, the "Existing Bonds") will be the

only outstanding obligations payable out of the revenues of the System, other than the Bonds directed to be issued under this Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the Board hereby finds and determines that the terms and conditions upon which refunding bonds may be issued, as established by the resolutions under which the Existing Bonds have been issued by the Board (said resolutions being hereinafter referred to collectively as the "Existing Resolutions"), have been fully met and complied with, and that the Bonds herein directed to be issued may be so issued in all respects on a parity with the Existing Bonds heretofore issued; and

WHEREAS, acting under and pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board hereby finds and determines that it is in the best interest of the University and of its students that revenue bonds be issued and secured in the form and manner as hereinafter provided;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY AS FOLLOWS:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

Section 101. Definitions of Words and Terms. In addition to words and terms defined elsewhere in this Resolution, the following words and terms as used in this Resolution shall have the following meanings:

"Act" means Chapter 176 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended.

"Board" means the Board of Governors of the University.

"Bond Counsel" means Gilmore & Bell, P.C., St. Louis, Missouri, or other attorney or firm of attorneys with a nationally recognized standing in the field of municipal bond financing selected by the University.

"Bond Register" means the books for the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds kept at the office of the Paying Agent.

"Bondowner," "Owner" or "Registered Owner" means the Person in whose name a Bond is registered on the Bond Register maintained by the Paying Agent.

"Bonds" means the Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2020, in the aggregate principal amount of \$15,245,000, issued pursuant to this Resolution.

"Business Day" means a day, other than a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, on which financial institutions located in New York, New York or St. Louis, Missouri are required or authorized by law or executive order to remain closed.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable regulations of the Treasury Department proposed or promulgated thereunder.

"Costs of Issuance Fund" means the Costs of Issuance Fund created in Section 401 hereof.

"Current Expenses" means all necessary expenses of operation, maintenance and repair of the System, including current maintenance charges, cost of food service, expenses of reasonable upkeep and repairs, properly allocated share of charges for insurance, and all other expenses incident to the operation of the System, but shall exclude depreciation and amortization charges, capital expenditures, interest paid on revenue bonds and all general administrative expenses of the University not related to the operation of the System, hereinafter provided for.

"Debt Service Account" means the Debt Service Account created in Section 401 hereof.

"Defaulted Interest" means interest on any Bond which is payable but not paid on any Interest Payment Date.

"Defeasance Obligations" means:

- (a) Cash.
- (b) U.S. Treasury Certificates, Notes and Bonds, including State and Local Government Series ("SLGs").
- (c) Direct obligations of the Treasury which have been stripped by the Treasury itself, as well as CATS, TIGRS and similar securities.
- (d) The interest component of Resolution Funding Corp. (REFCORP) strips which have been stripped by request to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York in book entry form.
- (e) Pre-refunded municipal bonds rated the rating afforded to the United States of America by any NRSRO.
- (f) Obligations issued by the following agencies that are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S.:
 - (1) <u>U.S. Export-Import Bank (Eximbank)</u>
 Direct obligations or fully guaranteed certificates of beneficial ownership
 - (2) <u>Farmers Home Administration (FmHA)</u> Certificates of beneficial ownership
 - (3) Federal Financing Bank
 - (4) <u>General Services Administration</u> Participation certificates
 - (5) <u>U.S. Maritime Administration</u> Guaranteed Title XI financing
 - (6) <u>U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)</u>
 Project Notes
 Local Authority Bonds
 New Communities Debentures U.S. government guaranteed debentures
 U.S. Public Housing Notes and Bonds U.S. government guaranteed public housing notes and bonds;

provided that any such obligations described in (b) through (f) above are not subject to redemption prior to maturity or the date such obligations must be liquidated for their intended purposes.

"Determination of Taxability" means and shall be deemed to have occurred on the first to occur of the following:

- (a) on the date the University files any statement, supplemental statement or other tax schedule, return or document which discloses that an Event of Taxability has in fact occurred;
- (b) on the date the University is advised in writing by the Commissioner or any District Director of the Internal Revenue Service (or any other government official or agent exercising the same or a substantially similar function from time to time) that, based upon filings of the University or upon any review or audit of the University, an Event of Taxability has occurred; or
- (c) on the date the University receives notice from the Registered Owner or any former Registered Owner that the Internal Revenue Service (or any other government official or agent exercising the same or a substantially similar function from time to time) has assessed as includable in the gross income of such Registered Owner or such former Registered Owner the interest on the Bonds due to the occurrence of an Event of Taxability;

provided, however, no Determination of Taxability shall occur under subparagraph (b) or (c) hereunder unless the University has been afforded the opportunity, at its expense, to contest any such assessment, and, further, no Determination of Taxability shall occur until such contest, if made, has been finally determined; provided further, however, that upon demand from the Registered Owner or any former Registered Owner, the University shall promptly reimburse the Registered Owner or former Registered Owner is obligated to make as a result of the Determination of Taxability.

"Event of Taxability" means (a) the occurrence or existence of any fact, event or circumstance solely as a result of the taking of any action by the University, the failure to take any action by the University, or the making by the University of any misrepresentation herein or in any certificate required to be given in connection with the issuance, sale or delivery of the Bonds that has the effect of causing interest paid or payable on the Bonds to become includable, in whole or in part, in the gross income of the Registered Owner or any former Registered Owner for federal income tax purposes or (b) the entry of any decree or judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction, or the taking of any official action by the Internal Revenue Service or the Department of the Treasury, which decree, judgment or action is final and non-appealable under applicable procedural law, in either case, which has the effect of causing interest paid or payable on the Bonds to become includable, in whole or in part, in the gross income of the Registered Owner or any former Registered Owner for federal income tax purposes with respect to the Bonds solely as a result of an action or inaction by the University described in clause (a) of this definition.

"Existing Bonds" means the Series 2015 Bonds and the Series 2016 Bonds.

"Existing Resolutions" means the resolutions heretofore adopted by the Board under which the Existing Bonds have been issued.

- "Federal Tax Certificate" means the Federal Tax Certificate delivered in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, as the same may be amended or supplemented in accordance with the provisions thereof.
 - "Interest Payment Date" means each June 1 and December 1, commencing December 1, 2020.
 - "Lender" means Regions Capital Advantage, Inc., the purchaser of the Bonds.
 - "Net Revenues" means Revenues less Current Expenses.
- "NRSRO" or "Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization" means a credit rating agency registered with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission or its successor pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
- "Outstanding" means, when used with reference to the Existing Bonds, the Bonds and any Parity Bonds, as of any particular date of determination, all Existing Bonds, the Bonds and any Parity Bonds theretofore authenticated and delivered hereunder, except the following:
 - (a) Existing Bonds, Bonds or any Parity Bonds theretofore canceled by the Paying Agent or delivered to the Paying Agent for cancellation;
 - (b) Existing Bonds, Bonds or any Parity Bonds deemed to be paid in accordance with the provisions of **Section 1001** hereof; and
 - (c) Existing Bonds, Bonds or any Parity Bonds in exchange for or in lieu of which other Bonds have been authenticated and delivered hereunder.
- "Parity Bonds" means the Existing Bonds and any additional bonds or other obligations hereafter issued or incurred pursuant to Section 902 hereof and standing on a parity and equality with the Bonds with respect to the payment of principal and interest from the Net Revenues of the System.
- "Parity Resolutions" means the Existing Resolutions and the resolution or resolutions under which any additional Parity Bonds are hereafter issued pursuant to Section 902 hereof.
- "Paying Agent" means the Comptroller of the University or other entity identified in Section 204 hereof, and any successors and assigns.
- "Permitted Investments" means, if and to the extent the same are at the time legal for investment of funds held under this Resolution:
 - (a) Direct obligations (other than an obligation subject to variation in principal repayment) of the United States of America ("United States Treasury Obligations"); obligations fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to timely payment of principal and interest by the United States of America; obligations fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to timely payment of principal and interest by any agency or instrumentality of the United States of America when such obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America; or evidences of ownership of proportionate interests in future interest and principal payments on obligations described above held by a bank or trust company as custodian, under which the owner of the investment is the real party in interest and has the right to proceed directly and individually against the obligor and the underlying government obligations are not available to any person claiming through the custodian or to whom the custodian may be obligated.

- (b) Federal Housing Administration debentures.
- (c) The listed obligations of government-sponsored agencies which are <u>not</u> backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America:
 - (1) Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC).
 - (2) Participation certificates (excluded are stripped mortgage securities which are purchased at prices exceeding their principal amounts) Senior Debt obligations.
 - (3) Farm Credit Banks (formerly: Federal Land Banks, Federal Intermediate Credit Banks and Banks for Cooperatives) Consolidated System-wide bonds and notes.
 - (4) Federal Home Loan Banks (FHL Banks) Consolidated debt obligations.
 - (5) Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) Senior debt obligations Mortgage-backed securities (excluded are stripped mortgage securities which are purchased at prices exceeding their principal amounts).
 - (6) Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA) Senior debt obligations (excluded are securities that do not have a fixed par value and/or whose terms do not promise a fixed dollar amount at maturity or call date).
 - (7) Financing Corporation (FICO) Debt obligations.
 - (8) Resolution Funding Corporation (REFCORP) Debt obligations.
 - (9) Tennessee Valley Authority.
 - (10) United States Postal Service.
 - (11) Private Export Funding Corporation.
- (d) Unsecured certificates of deposit, time deposits, demand deposits including interest bearing money market accounts, trust deposits, trust accounts, overnight bank deposits, interest-bearing deposits, and bankers' acceptances (having maturities of not more than 30 days) of any bank rated in the highest short-term rating category, without respect to modifier, by an NRSRO at the time of purchase.
- (e) Deposits, including certificates of deposit, the aggregate amount of which are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).
- (f) Commercial paper (having original maturities of not more than 270 days) rated in the highest short-term rating category, without respect to modifier, by an NRSRO at the time of purchase.
- (g) Money market funds rated in the second highest rating category or higher, without respect to modifier, by an NRSRO at the time of purchase.

(h) "State Obligations," which means:

- (1) Direct general obligations of any state of the United States of America or any political subdivision or agency thereof to which is pledged the full faith and credit of a state the unsecured general obligation debt of which is rated in the third highest rating category or higher, without respect to modifier, by an NRSRO at the time of purchase, or any obligation fully and unconditionally guaranteed by any state, subdivision or agency whose unsecured general obligation debt is so rated at the time of purchase.
- (2) Direct general short-term obligations of any state agency or subdivision or agency thereof described in (i) above and rated in the highest short-term rating category, without respect to modifier, by an NRSRO at the time of purchase.
- (3) Special Revenue Bonds (as defined in the United States Bankruptcy Code) of any state, state agency or subdivision described in (i) above and rated in the second highest rating category or higher, without respect to modifier, by an NRSRO at the time of purchase.
- (i) Pre-refunded municipal obligations rated by at least one NRSRO at the time of purchase the rating afforded to the United States of America meeting the following requirements:
 - (1) the municipal obligations are (A) not subject to redemption prior to maturity or (B) the trustee for the municipal obligations has been given irrevocable instructions concerning their call and redemption and the issuer of the municipal obligations has covenanted not to redeem such municipal obligations other than as set forth in such instructions;
 - (2) the municipal obligations are secured by cash or United States Treasury Obligations which may be applied only to payment of the principal of, interest and premium on such municipal obligations;
 - (3) the principal of and interest on the United States Treasury Obligations (plus any cash in the escrow) has been verified by the report of independent certified public accountants to be sufficient to pay in full all principal of, interest, and premium, if any, due and to become due on the municipal obligations ("Verification");
 - (4) the cash or United States Treasury Obligations serving as security for the municipal obligations are held by an escrow agent or trustee in trust for owners of the municipal obligations;
 - (5) no substitution of a United States Treasury Obligation shall be permitted except with another United States Treasury Obligation and upon delivery of a new Verification; and
 - (6) the cash or United States Treasury Obligations are not available to satisfy any other claims, including those by or against the trustee or escrow agent.

(j) Repurchase agreements:

With (1) any domestic bank, or domestic branch of a foreign bank, the long term debt of which is rated in the third highest rating category or higher, without respect to modifier, by an NRSRO at

the time of purchase; (2) any broker-dealer with "retail customers" or a related affiliate thereof, which broker-dealer has, or the parent company (which guarantees the provider) of which has, long-term debt rated in the third highest rating category or higher, without respect to modifier, by an NRSRO at the time of purchase, which broker-dealer falls under the jurisdiction of the Securities Investors Protection Corporation; or (3) any other entity rated in the third highest rating category or higher, without respect to modifier, by an NRSRO at the time of purchase, provided that:

- (A) The market value of the collateral is maintained at levels and upon such conditions as would be acceptable to maintain a rating in the third highest rating category or higher, without respect to modifier, by an NRSRO (with a market value approach);
- (B) The University or a third party acting solely as agent therefor (the "Holder of the Collateral") has possession of the collateral or the collateral has been transferred to the Holder of the Collateral in accordance with applicable state and federal laws (other than by means of entries on the transferor's books);
- (C) The repurchase agreement shall state and an Opinion of Counsel shall be rendered at the time such collateral is delivered that the Holder of the Collateral has a perfected first priority security interest in the collateral, any substituted collateral and all proceeds thereof (in the case of bearer securities, this means the Holder of the Collateral is in possession);
- (D) All other requirements of an NRSRO in respect of repurchase agreements shall be met; and
- (E) The repurchase agreement shall provide that if during its term the provider's rating by an NRSRO is withdrawn or suspended or falls below the third highest rating category, without respect to modifier, the provider must, at the direction of the University, within 10 days of receipt of such direction, repurchase all collateral and terminate the agreement, with no penalty or premium to the University.

Notwithstanding the above, if a repurchase agreement has a term of 270 days or less (with no evergreen provision), collateral levels need not be as specified in (i) above, so long as such collateral levels are 105% or better.

- (k) Investment agreements with a domestic or foreign bank or corporation (other than a life or property casualty insurance company); provided that, by the terms of the investment agreement:
 - (1) interest payments are to be made to the University at times and in amounts as necessary to pay debt service on the Bonds;
 - (2) the invested funds are available for withdrawal without penalty or premium, at any time upon not more than seven days' prior notice; the University hereby agrees to give or cause to be given notice in accordance with the terms of the investment agreement so as to receive funds thereunder with no penalty or premium paid;

- (3) the investment agreement shall state that it is the unconditional and general obligation of, and is not subordinated to any other obligation of, the provider thereof or, if the provider is a bank, the agreement or the Opinion of Counsel shall state that the obligation of the provider to make payments thereunder ranks pari passu with the obligations of the provider to its other depositors and its other unsecured and unsubordinated creditors;
- (4) the University receives the opinion of domestic counsel (which opinion shall be addressed to the University) that such investment agreement is legal, valid, binding and enforceable upon the provider in accordance with its terms and of foreign counsel (if applicable) in form and substance acceptable, and addressed to, the University;
- term of such investment agreement, fails to maintain a rating in the third highest rating category or higher, without respect to modifier, with at least two NRSROs, it shall, at the option of the University, within 10 days of receipt of publication of such downgrade, either (A) collateralize the investment agreement by delivering or transferring the collateral in accordance with applicable state and federal laws (other than by means of entries on the provider's books) to the Holder of the Collateral free and clear of any third-party liens or claims the market value of which collateral is maintained at levels and upon such conditions as would be acceptable to at least two NRSROs to maintain a structured financing rating (with a market value approach) in the third highest category or higher, without respect to modifier, of such two NRSROs; or (B) within 10 days of receipt of such direction, repay the principal of and accrued but unpaid interest on the investment, in either case with no penalty or premium to the University;
- (6) the investment agreement shall state and an Opinion of Counsel shall be rendered, in the event collateral is required to be pledged by the provider under the terms of the investment agreement, at the time such collateral is delivered, that the Holder of the Collateral has a perfected first priority security interest in the collateral, any substituted collateral and all proceeds thereof (in the case of bearer securities, this means the Holder of the Collateral is in possession); and

(7) the investment agreement must provide that if during its term

- (A) the provider shall default in its payment obligations, the provider's obligations under the investment agreement shall, at the direction of the University, be accelerated and amounts invested and accrued but unpaid interest thereon shall be repaid to the University or the Trustee, as appropriate, and
- (B) the provider shall become insolvent, not pay its debts as they become due, be declared or petition to be declared bankrupt, etc. ("event of insolvency"), the provider's obligations shall automatically be accelerated and amounts invested and accrued but unpaid interest thereon shall be repaid to the University or the Trustee, as appropriate.
- (l) Such other investments permitted by the Resolution that are rated in either of the two highest categories at the time of purchase by an NRSRO (without respect to modifier).

- "Person" means any natural person, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, firm, joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated organization, or government or any agency or political subdivision thereof or other public body.
 - "Rebate Fund" means the Rebate Fund created in Section 501 hereof.
- "Record Date" means the fifteenth day (whether or not a Business Day) of the calendar month next preceding an Interest Payment Date.
- "Redemption Date" when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed means the date fixed for the redemption of such Bond pursuant to the terms of this Resolution.
- "Redemption Price" when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed means the price at which such Bond is to be redeemed pursuant to the terms of this Resolution, including the applicable redemption premium, if any, but excluding installments of interest whose Stated Maturity is on or before the Redemption Date.
- "Refunded Bonds" means the University's Housing System Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, maturing on June 1, 2020 and thereafter, currently outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of \$15,770,000.
- "Refunded Bond Resolution" means the Resolution of the University passed by the Board of Governors on April 2, 2013, authorizing the issuance of the Refunded Bonds.
- "Replacement Bonds" means Bonds issued to the beneficial owners of the Bonds in accordance with Section 210(b) hereof.
- "Resolution" means this resolution as from time to time amended in accordance with the terms hereof.
- "Revenues" means all rentals, charges, fees, income and revenues derived and collected by the University from the operation and ownership of the System, including, but not limited to, the proceeds derived from the student union building fee established by the Board and collected from all enrolled students and any other student fees collected by the University and designated by the University for purposes of the System.
- "Series 2013 Bonds" means the University's Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2013.
- "Series 2015 Bonds" means the University's Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2015.
- "Series 2016 Bonds" means the University's Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2016
- "Special Record Date" means the date fixed by the Paying Agent pursuant to Section 205 hereof for the payment of Defaulted Interest.
- "System" means the student housing system heretofore established by the University and is hereby defined as and shall be understood to include the following:

- (a) All of the facilities which heretofore comprised the student housing system, namely Missouri Hall, Ryle Hall, Centennial Hall, Dobson Hall, Nason Hall, Blanton Hall, Brewer Hall, Campbell Apartments, Randolph Apartments and the West Campus Suites, the existing student union building and additions thereto and also including, but not limited to, the dining facilities, university book store, snack bar and recreational facilities therein; and
- (b) All housing, dining and other auxiliary enterprises hereafter constructed, acquired, owned, or operated by the University which may become a part of said System while any bonds remain Outstanding against the System.

The System shall not include (1) any facilities hereafter constructed or acquired, which are not financed with the proceeds of revenue bonds payable from the income and revenues of the System, and for which the University maintains separate and distinct operations, facilities and records or (2) any facilities currently part of the System that become inadequate, obsolete or worn out, or otherwise unsuitable, unprofitable, undesirable or unnecessary for the operation of the System.

"System Revenue Fund" means the System Revenue Fund Account referred to in Section 401 hereof.

"Taxable Date" means the date on which interest on the Bonds is first includable in gross income of any current or former Registered Owner as a result of an Event of Taxability as such date is established pursuant to a Determination of Taxability.

"Taxable Period" means the time period described in Section 202 hereof.

"Taxable Rate" means a rate of interest providing an after-tax yield on the then-outstanding principal amount of the Bonds providing the Lender an after-tax yield on the Bonds equal to what the Lender could have received if a Determination of Taxability had not occurred. The Taxable Rate for the Bonds shall be 2.60%.

"University" means Truman State University.

"Valuation Date" means June 30 and December 31 of each year.

ARTICLE II

AUTHORIZATION AND SALE OF THE BONDS

Section 201. Authorization of the Bonds. There is hereby authorized to be issued a series of revenue bonds designated "Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2020" in the aggregate principal amount of \$15,245,000 for the purpose of providing funds, together with other legally available funds of the University, to (a) refund the Refunded Bonds and (b) pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds.

Section 202. Security for the Bonds.

(a) The Bonds and the interest thereon shall constitute special obligations of the University payable solely from, and secured as to the payment of principal and interest by a pledge of, the Net Revenues derived from the operation and ownership of the System (excluding amounts payable to the United States pursuant to Section 148 of the Code) and other funds herein pledged, and such obligations shall not constitute general obligations or an indebtedness of the State of Missouri, the University, the

Board or of the individual members of the Board. The Owners of the Bonds shall have no right to demand payment out of funds raised or to be raised by taxation or appropriation.

- (b) The covenants and agreements of the Board contained herein and in the Bonds shall be for the equal benefit, protection, and security of the legal owners of any or all of the Bonds, all of which Bonds shall be of equal rank and without preference or priority of one Bond over any other Bond in the application of the revenues herein pledged to the payment of the principal of and the interest on the Bonds, or otherwise, except as to rate of interest, date of maturity and right of prior redemption as provided in this Resolution.
- (c) The Bonds shall stand on a parity and be equally and ratably secured with respect to the payment of principal and interest from the Net Revenues of the System and in all other respects with the Existing Bonds. The Bonds shall not have any priority with respect to the payment of principal or interest from the Net Revenues or otherwise over the Existing Bonds nor over any Parity Bonds hereafter issued in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Resolution, nor shall any Parity Bonds hereafter issued have any priority with respect to the payment of principal or interest from the Net Revenues or otherwise over the Bonds.
- Section 203. Description of the Bonds. The Bonds shall consist of fully-registered bonds, numbered from R-1 consecutively upward, in the denominations of \$100,000 or any integral multiple of \$5,000 in excess thereof. The Bonds shall be substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A hereto, and shall be subject to registration, transfer and exchange as provided in Section 206 hereof. The Bonds shall be dated the date of delivery, shall become due on June 1, 2033, subject to redemption and payment prior to the Stated Maturity as provided in Article III hereof, and shall bear interest at the rate of 1.92% per annum (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) from the date thereof or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, payable semiannually on June 1 and December 1 in each year, beginning on December 1, 2020.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon the occurrence of:

- (1) a Determination of Taxability the interest rate on the Bonds shall be adjusted to the Taxable Rate for the Taxable Period. Additionally, following a Determination of Taxability, the University agrees to pay to the Registered Owners on demand (a) an amount equal to the difference between (1) the amount of interest on the Bonds that would have been paid to such Registered Owner during the period for which interest on the Bonds is included in the gross income of such Registered Owner as a result of an Event of Taxability if the Bonds had borne interest at the Taxable Rate, beginning on the Taxable Date (the "Taxable Period"), and (2) the amount of interest actually paid to the Registered Owners during the Taxable Period, and (b) an amount equal to any interest, penalties or charges owed by such Registered Owners as a result of interest on the Bonds becoming included in the gross income of the Registered Owners, together with any and all attorneys' fees, court costs, or other out-of-pocket costs incurred by the Registered Owners in connection therewith; or
- (2) an Event of Default (as defined in **Section 1001**), the interest rate on the Bonds shall be increased by 5.00% above the otherwise applicable rate (i.e., the Taxable Rate or otherwise) until such Event of Default is cured.

Section 204. Designation of Paying Agent. The University's Comptroller is hereby designated as the paying agent for the payment of principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds and as bond registrar with respect to the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds (the "Paying Agent").

The University will at all times maintain a Paying Agent meeting the qualifications herein described for the performance of the duties hereunder. The University reserves the right to appoint a successor Paying Agent by (a) filing with the Paying Agent then performing such function a certified copy of the proceedings giving notice of the termination of such Paying Agent and appointing a successor and (b) causing notice of the appointment of the successor Paying Agent to be given by first class mail to each Bondowner. The Paying Agent may resign upon giving written notice by first class mail to the University and the Bondowners not less than 60 days prior to the date such resignation is to take effect. No resignation or removal of the Paying Agent shall become effective until a successor has been appointed and has accepted the duties of the Paying Agent.

Every Paying Agent appointed hereunder shall at all times be either (1) the Comptroller of the University or (2) a commercial banking association or corporation or trust company located in the State of Missouri organized and in good standing and doing business under the laws of the United States of America or of the State of Missouri and subject to supervision or examination by federal or state regulatory authority.

The Paying Agent shall be paid its fees and expenses for its services in connection herewith.

Section 205. Method and Place of Payment of Bonds. The principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency which, on the respective dates of payment thereof, is legal tender for the payment of debts due the United States of America.

The principal of and redemption premium, if any, on each Bond shall be paid at maturity or upon earlier redemption by check, electronic transfer or draft to the Person in whose name such Bond is registered on the Bond Register at the maturity or redemption date thereof, upon presentation and surrender of such Bond at the principal payment office of the Paying Agent. Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provision herein to the contrary, principal payable with respect to scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemptions pursuant to **Section 301(b)** hereof shall not require presentation or surrender of such Bonds until the final Stated Maturity thereof or the final payment in full thereof.

The interest payable on each Bond on any Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the Registered Owner of such Bond as shown on the Bond Register at the close of business on the Record Date for such interest by check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent to such Registered Owner at the address shown on the Bond Register or by electronic transfer to such Registered Owner upon written notice signed by such Registered Owner and given to the Paying Agent not less than 15 days prior to the Record Date for such interest, containing the electronic transfer instructions including the bank, address, ABA routing number and account number to which such Registered Owner wishes to have such transfer directed and an acknowledgment that an electronic transfer fee may be applicable.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, any Defaulted Interest with respect to any Bond shall cease to be payable to the Owner of such Bond on the relevant Record Date and shall be payable to the Owner in whose name such Bond is registered at the close of business on the Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which Special Record Date shall be fixed in the following manner: The University shall notify the Paying Agent in writing of the amount of Defaulted Interest proposed to be paid on each Bond and the date of the proposed payment (which date shall be at least 30 days after receipt of such notice by the Paying Agent), and shall deposit with the Paying Agent at the time of such notice an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount proposed to be paid in respect of such Defaulted Interest or shall make arrangements satisfactory to the Paying Agent for such deposit prior to the date of the proposed payment. Following receipt of such funds the Paying Agent shall fix a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest which shall be not more than 15 nor less than 10 days prior to the date of the proposed payment. The Paying Agent shall promptly notify the

University of such Special Record Date and, in the name and at the expense of the University, shall cause notice of the proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and the Special Record Date therefor to be mailed, by first-class mail postage prepaid, to each Owner of a Bond entitled to such notice at the address of such Owner as it appears in the Bond Register maintained by the Paying Agent not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date.

The Paying Agent shall keep a record of payment of principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on all Bonds. Any payment of principal of or interest on a Bond that becomes due on a day when the Paying Agent is not open for business shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day without additional interest accruing.

Section 206. Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds. The Board covenants that it will, as long as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding, cause the Bond Register to be kept at the office of the Paying Agent as herein provided. Each Bond when issued shall be registered in the name of the owner thereof on the Bond Register.

The Bonds may be transferred in whole or in part, and the Lender agrees that it will only offer, sell, pledge, transfer or exchange any of the Bonds it purchases (1) in accordance with an available exemption from the registration requirements of Section 5 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, (2) in accordance with any applicable state securities laws, (3) to an institution that is an "accredited investor" as defined in Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933 and/or a "qualified institutional buyer" under Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, and (4) in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution. Bonds may be transferred and exchanged only on the Bond Register as provided in this Section. Upon surrender of any Bond at the office of the Paying Agent, the Paying Agent shall transfer or exchange such Bond for a new Bond or Bonds in any authorized denomination of the same Stated Maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount as the Bond that was presented for transfer or exchange. Bonds presented for transfer or exchange shall be accompanied by a written instrument or instruments of transfer or authorization for exchange, in a form and with guarantee of signature satisfactory to the Paying Agent, duly executed by the Registered Owner thereof or by the Registered Owner's duly authorized agent.

In all cases in which the privilege of transferring or exchanging Bonds is exercised, the Paying Agent shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution. The University shall pay the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent for the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds provided for by this Resolution and the cost of printing a reasonable supply of registered bond blanks. Any additional costs or fees that might be incurred in the secondary market, other than fees of the Paying Agent, are the responsibility of the Bondowners. In the event any Registered Owner fails to provide a correct taxpayer identification number to the Paying Agent, the Paying Agent may make a charge against such Registered Owner sufficient to pay any governmental charge required to be paid as a result of such failure. In compliance with Section 3406 of the Code, such amount may be deducted by the Paying Agent from amounts otherwise payable to such Registered Owner hereunder or under the Bonds.

The University and the Paying Agent shall not be required (a) to register the transfer or exchange of any Bond after notice calling such Bond or portion thereof for redemption has been given or during the period of fifteen days next preceding the first mailing of such notice of redemption or (b) to register the transfer or exchange of any Bond during a period beginning at the opening of business on the day after receiving written notice from the University of its intent to pay Defaulted Interest and ending at the close of business on the date fixed for the payment of Defaulted Interest pursuant to **Section 205** hereof.

The Board and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the Person in whose name any Bond shall be registered on the Bond Register as the absolute owner of such Bond, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on said Bond and for all other purposes, and all such payments so made to any such Registered Owner or upon the Registered Owner's order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the University nor the Paying Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary, but such registration may be changed as herein provided.

At reasonable times and under reasonable regulations established by the Paying Agent, the Bond Register may be inspected and copied by the Registered Owners of 10% or more in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding or any designated representative of such Registered Owners whose authority is evidenced to the satisfaction of the Paying Agent.

Section 207. Execution, Authentication and Delivery of the Bonds. The Bonds, including any Bonds issued in exchange or as substitutions for the Bonds initially delivered, shall be signed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Chair or Vice Chair of the Board, attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of the Board and shall have the official seal of the University affixed thereto or imprinted thereon. In case any officer whose signature or facsimile thereof appears on any Bonds shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such Bonds, such signature or facsimile thereof shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes, the same as if such person had remained in office until delivery. Any Bond may be signed by such persons who at the actual time of the execution of such Bond shall be the proper officers to sign such Bond although at the date of such Bond such persons may not have been such officers.

The Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary of the Board are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and execute the Bonds as hereinbefore specified, and when duly executed, to deliver the Bonds to the Paying Agent for authentication. Upon authentication, and pursuant to the written direction of the Board, the Paying Agent shall deliver the Bonds to the Lender upon payment to the University of the purchase price thereof.

The Bonds shall have endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication substantially in the form set forth in **Exhibit A** hereto, which shall be manually executed by the Paying Agent. No Bond shall be entitled to any security or benefit under this Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless and until such certificate of authentication shall have been duly executed by the Paying Agent. Such executed certificate of authentication upon any Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has been duly authenticated and delivered under this Resolution. The certificate of authentication on any Bond shall be deemed to have been duly executed if signed by any authorized signatory of the Paying Agent, but it shall not be necessary that the same signatory sign the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds that may be issued hereunder at any one time.

Section 208. Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost and Stolen Bonds. If (a) any mutilated Bond is surrendered to the Paying Agent, or the Paying Agent receives evidence to its satisfaction of the mutilation, destruction, loss or theft of any Bond and (b) there is delivered to the Paying Agent such security or indemnity as may be required by it to indemnify the University and the Paying Agent, then, in the absence of notice to the Paying Agent that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, the University shall execute and, the Paying Agent shall authenticate and deliver, in exchange for or in lieu of any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, a new Bond of the same maturity and of like tenor and principal amount.

If any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond has become or is about to become due and payable, the Paying Agent, in its discretion may pay such Bond instead of delivering a new Bond.

Upon the issuance of any new Bond under this Section, the University or the Paying Agent may require the payment by the Owner of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses (including the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent) connected therewith.

Every new Bond issued pursuant to this Section shall constitute a replacement of the prior obligation of the University, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Resolution equally and ratably with all other Outstanding Bonds.

Section 209. Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds Upon Payment. All Bonds that have been paid or redeemed or that otherwise have been surrendered to the Paying Agent, either at or before maturity, shall be cancelled by the Paying Agent immediately upon the payment, redemption and surrender thereof to the Paying Agent and subsequently destroyed in accordance with the customary practices of the Paying Agent. The Paying Agent shall execute a certificate in duplicate describing the Bonds so cancelled and shall file an executed counterpart of such certificate with the University.

Section 210. Approval of Term Sheet and Sale of Bonds.

- (a) The University hereby accepts the Lender's commitment letter to purchase the Bonds (the "Proposal"), attached hereto as Exhibit B. The Comptroller or other officer of the University is hereby authorized to execute the Proposal and any documents relating thereto to evidence the University's agreement to the terms thereof.
- (b) The University is authorized to sell the Bonds to the Lender at a purchase price of \$15,245,000. The Bonds shall be delivered to or upon the order of the Lender as soon as practicable after the passage of this Resolution, upon payment therefor in accordance with the terms of sale.

ARTICLE III

REDEMPTION OF BONDS

Section 301. Redemption of Bonds.

- (a) Optional Redemption. At the option of the University, the Bonds may be called for redemption and payment prior to the stated maturity thereof on June 2, 2027 and thereafter, as a whole or in part at any time, in such amounts as shall be determined by the University in inverse order of mandatory sinking fund redemptions at the Redemption Price of 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest thereon to the Redemption Date.
- (b) Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption and payment prior to their Stated Maturity pursuant to the mandatory redemption requirements of this subsection at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the Redemption Date. The University shall redeem on June 1 in each year, the following principal amounts of the Bonds:

Stated Maturity	Principal
<u>(June 1)</u>	<u>Amount</u>
2021	\$ 45,000
2022	1,135,000
2023	1,160,000
2024	1,185,000
2025	1,205,000
2026	1,230,000
2027	1,250,000
2028	1,275,000
2029	1,305,000
2030	1,325,000
2031	1,350,000
2032	1,375,000
2033 ⁺	1,405,000

+Final Maturity

At its option, to be exercised on or before the 45th day next preceding any mandatory Redemption Date, the University may: (1) deliver to the Paying Agent for cancellation Bonds subject to mandatory redemption on said mandatory Redemption Date, in any aggregate principal amount desired, or (2) furnish the Paying Agent funds, together with appropriate instructions, for the purpose of purchasing any Bonds subject to mandatory redemption on said mandatory Redemption Date from any Registered Owner thereof whereupon the Paying Agent shall expend such funds for such purpose to such extent as may be practical. Each Bond so delivered or previously purchased or redeemed shall be credited at 100% of the principal amount thereof on the obligation of the University to redeem the Bonds on such mandatory Redemption Date, and any excess of such amount shall be credited on future mandatory redemption obligations for the Bonds in chronological order, and the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed by operation of the requirements of this Section shall be accordingly reduced. If the University intends to exercise any option granted by the provisions of clauses (1) or (2) above, the University will, on or before the 45th day next preceding each mandatory Redemption Date, furnish to the Paying Agent a written certificate indicating to what extent the provisions of said clauses (1) and (2) are to be complied with, with respect to such mandatory redemption payment.

Section 302. Notice of Redemption; Effect of Redemption. Unless waived by any Registered Owner of Bonds to be redeemed, official notice of any redemption shall be given by the Paying Agent on behalf of the University by mailing a copy of an official redemption notice by first class mail at least 10 days prior to the Redemption Date to each Registered Owner of the Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the Bond Register.

All official notices of redemption shall be dated and shall contain the following information:

- (a) the Redemption Date;
- (b) the Redemption Price;

- (c) if less than all Outstanding Bonds of a maturity are to be redeemed, the identification number, Stated Maturity, and, in the case of partial redemption of any Bonds, the respective principal amounts of the Bonds to be redeemed;
- (d) a statement that on the Redemption Date the Redemption Price will become due and payable upon each such Bond or portion thereof called for redemption and that interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after the Redemption Date; and
- (e) the place where such Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the Redemption Price.

The failure of any Registered Owner to receive notice given as heretofore provided or any defect therein shall not invalidate any redemption.

Prior to any Redemption Date, the University shall deposit with the Paying Agent an amount of money sufficient to pay the Redemption Price of all the Bonds or portions of Bonds that are to be redeemed on that date.

Official notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall become due and payable on the Redemption Date at the Redemption Price therein specified, and from and after the Redemption Date (unless the University defaults in the payment of the Redemption Price) such Bonds or portion of Bonds shall cease to bear interest. Upon surrender of such Bonds for redemption in accordance with such notice, the Redemption Price of such Bonds shall be paid by the Paying Agent. Installments of interest due on or prior to the Redemption Date shall be payable as herein provided for payment of interest. Upon surrender for any partial redemption of any Bond, there shall be prepared for the Registered Owner a new Bond or Bonds of the same Stated Maturity in the amount of the unpaid principal as provided herein. All Bonds that have been redeemed shall be cancelled and destroyed by the Paying Agent as provided herein and shall not be reissued.

Notice of optional redemption given in accordance with this Section shall be irrevocable.

Section 303. Selection of Bonds to Be Redeemed.

- (a) The Paying Agent shall call Bonds for redemption and payment and shall give notice of such redemption as herein provided upon receipt by the Paying Agent at least 15 days prior to the Redemption Date of written instructions from the University specifying the principal amount, Redemption Date and Redemption Price of the Bonds to be called for redemption. If any Bonds are refunded more than 90 days in advance of such Redemption Date, any escrow agreement entered into by the University in connection with such refunding shall provide that such written instructions to the Paying Agent shall be given by the escrow agent on behalf of the University not less than 15 days prior to the Redemption Date. The Paying Agent may in its discretion waive such notice period so long as the notice requirements set forth in **Section 303** are met. The foregoing provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to the mandatory redemption of Bonds hereunder, and Bonds shall be called by the Paying Agent for redemption pursuant to such mandatory redemption requirements without the necessity of any action by the University and whether or not the Paying Agent holds moneys available and sufficient to effect the required redemption.
- (b) Bonds shall be redeemed only in the principal amount of \$100,000 or any integral multiple of \$5,000 in excess thereof. Bonds of less than a full Stated Maturity shall be selected by the Paying Agent in \$100,000 units of principal amount in such equitable manner as the Paying Agent may determine, and shall be redeemed in inverse order of mandatory sinking fund redemption date.

(c) In the case of a partial redemption of Bonds at the time Outstanding in denominations greater than \$100,000, then for all purposes in connection with such redemption each \$100,000 of face value shall be treated as though it were a separate Bond of the denomination of \$100,000. If it is determined that one or more, but not all, of the \$100,000 units of face value represented by any Bond are selected for redemption, then upon notice of intention to redeem such \$100,000 unit or units, the Registered Owner of such Bond or the Registered Owner's duly authorized agent shall present and surrender such Bond to the Paying Agent (1) for payment of the Redemption Price and interest to the Redemption Date of such \$100,000 unit or units of face value called for redemption, and (2) for exchange, without charge to the Registered Owner thereof, for a new Bond or Bonds of the aggregate principal amount of the unredeemed portion of the principal amount of such Bond. If the Registered Owner of any such Bond fails to present such Bond to the Paying Agent for payment and exchange as aforesaid, such Bond shall, nevertheless, become due and payable on the Redemption Date to the extent of the \$100,000 unit or units of face value called for redemption (and to that extent only).

ARTICLE IV

ESTABLISHMENT AND RATIFICATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

Section 401. Establishment or Ratification of Funds. There are hereby ratified or created and ordered to be established and held in the account of the University, separate and apart from all other funds and accounts, the following separate funds and accounts:

- (a) Housing System Revenue Fund (the "System Revenue Fund").
- (b) Costs of Issuance Fund (the "Costs of Issuance Fund")
- (c) Debt Service Account for Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Debt Service Account").
 - (d) Rebate Fund for Housing System Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Rebate Fund").

Section 402. Administration of Funds and Accounts. The funds and accounts established pursuant to Section 401 hereof shall be maintained and administered by the University solely for the purposes and in the manner as provided in this Resolution, except that the System Revenue Fund shall also be maintained and administered as provided in the Existing Resolutions.

ARTICLE V

APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS AND OTHER MONEYS

Section 501. Disposition of Bond Proceeds and Other Moneys. The proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds, together with other legally available funds of the University, shall be deposited simultaneously with the delivery of the Bonds, as follows:

(a) in the Costs of Issuance Fund from the proceeds of the Bonds, the sum of \$96,123.75; and

- (b) with UMB Bank, N.A., as paying agent for the Refunded Bonds, the sum of \$16,046,476.25 (consisting of \$15,148,876.25 of proceeds from the sale of the Bonds and \$897,600.00 from the debt service account for the Refunded Bonds), which amount shall be used for the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Refunded Bonds on June 1, 2020.
- Section 502. Application of Moneys in the Costs of Issuance Fund. Moneys in the Costs of Issuance Fund shall be used by the University for the sole purpose of paying the costs and expenses incidental to the issuance of the Bonds. The University may withdraw money from the Cost of Issuance Fund upon the execution of approved documentation in accordance with University disbursement procedures. The University shall keep and maintain adequate records pertaining to the Cost of Issuance Fund and all disbursements therefrom. Upon payment of all costs of issuance as hereinbefore provided and no later than November 1, 2020, any surplus remaining in the Costs of Issuance Fund shall be deposited in the Debt Service Account.

Section 503. Redemption of the Refunded Bonds. All of the Refunded Bonds maturing on June 1, 2021 and thereafter are hereby called for redemption and payment prior to maturity on June 1, 2020 at the office of the paying agent for the Refunded Bonds, by the payment on the redemption date of the principal thereof, redemption premium, if any, and accrued interest thereon to the redemption date. In accordance with the requirements of the Refunded Bond Resolution, the Board hereby directs the Comptroller of the University to cause notice of the call for redemption and payment of the Refunded Bonds described above to be given in the manner provided in said Refunded Bond Resolution. The officers of the University and the paying agent for the Refunded Bonds are hereby authorized and directed to take such other action as may be necessary in order to effect the redemption and payment of the Refunded Bonds maturing on June 1, 2021 and thereafter as herein provided.

ARTICLE VI

APPLICATION OF REVENUES

- Section 601. System Revenue Fund. The Board covenants and agrees that from and after the delivery of the Bonds, and continuing as long as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding and unpaid, all Revenues will be paid and deposited into the System Revenue Fund, and that said Revenues shall be segregated and kept separate and apart from all other moneys, revenues, funds and accounts of the University and shall not be commingled with any other moneys, revenues, funds and accounts of the University. The System Revenue Fund shall be administered and applied solely for the purposes and in the manner provided in this Resolution.
- Section 602. Application of Moneys in Funds and Accounts. The University covenants and agrees that from and after the delivery of the Bonds and continuing so long as any of the Bonds shall remain Outstanding and unpaid, the System Revenue Fund shall be expended and used by the University in the manner and order specified below, to wit:
- (a) Current Expenses of the System shall be payable, as a first charge, from the System Revenue Fund as the same become due and payable.
- (b) There shall next be transferred from the System Revenue Fund and deposited into the Debt Service Account, after providing for the payment of the Current Expenses of the System, the following amounts, in addition to payments and deposits otherwise required to be made therein:

- (1) By May 15 and November 15 in each year, beginning November 15, 2020, a sum of money not less than the next maturing interest on the Bonds; and
- (2) On or before each May 15 and November 15, beginning November 15, 2020, a sum of money not less than one-half of the principal on the Bonds maturing on the succeeding June 1.

The amounts required to be paid and credited to the Debt Service Account pursuant to this Section shall be so paid at the same time and on a parity with the amounts at the time required to be paid and credited to the debt service accounts established for the payment of principal and interest on the Existing Bonds and any other Parity Bonds under the provisions of the Existing Resolutions and resolutions of the Board authorizing the other Parity Bonds.

Any amounts deposited in the Debt Service Account as accrued interest in accordance with Section 501 hereof shall be credited against the University's payment obligations as set forth in subsection (b)(1) of this Section.

All amounts paid and credited to the Debt Service Account shall be expended and used by the University for the sole purpose of paying the interest on and principal of the Bonds as and when the same become due on each bond payment date.

If at any time the moneys in the System Revenue Fund are insufficient to make in full the payments and credits at the time required to be made to the Debt Service Account and to the debt service accounts established to pay the principal of and interest on any Parity Bonds, the available moneys in the System Revenue Fund shall be divided among such debt service accounts in proportion to the respective principal amounts of said series of bonds at the time Outstanding which are payable from the moneys in said debt service accounts.

- (c) Subject to making the foregoing required payments and deposits in full, the Board may use the balance of excess funds in the System Revenue Fund at the close of each fiscal year (1) to redeem Outstanding Bonds, (2) for any lawful expenditures with respect to the System, including the payment of debt service, in improving or restoring any facilities which are a part of the System or providing any such additional facilities or (3) for any other lawful purpose.
- Section 603. Transfer of Funds to Paying Agent. The Treasurer of the Board is hereby authorized and directed to withdraw from the Debt Service Account sums sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds. The Treasurer of the Board is also authorized to pay as Current Expenses the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent when the same become due, and to forward such sums in immediately available funds to the Paying Agent prior to the second Business Day immediately preceding the dates when such principal, interest and fees of the Paying Agent will become due. If, through lapse of time, or otherwise, the owners of Bonds shall no longer be entitled to enforce payment of their obligations, it shall be the duty of the Paying Agent in accordance with Section 606 forthwith to return said funds to the University. All moneys deposited with the Paying Agent shall be deemed to be deposited in accordance with and subject to all of the provisions contained in this Resolution.

Section 604. Deposits into and Application of Moneys in the Rebate Fund.

(a) There shall be deposited in the Rebate Fund such amounts as are required to be deposited therein pursuant to the Federal Tax Certificate. Subject to the payment provisions provided in subsection (b) below, all money in the Rebate Fund shall be held in trust, to the extent required to satisfy the payment of rebatable arbitrage to the United States of America, and neither the University nor the Registered

Owner of any Bond shall have any rights in or claim to such money. All amounts deposited into or on deposit in the Rebate Fund shall be governed by this Section and the Federal Tax Certificate (which is incorporated herein by reference).

- (b) Pursuant to the Federal Tax Certificate, the University shall remit all rebate installments and a final rebate payment to the United States. Any moneys remaining in the Rebate Fund after redemption and payment of all of the Bonds and payment and satisfaction of any rebatable arbitrage shall be withdrawn and paid to the University.
- (c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution, including in particular **Article XI** hereof, the obligation to pay rebatable arbitrage to the United States and to comply with all other requirements of this Section and the Federal Tax Certificate shall survive the defeasance or payment in full of the Bonds.

Section 605. Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. In any case when the date for making a payment on a Bond is not a Business Day, then payment of principal, redemption price or interest need not be made on such date but may be made on the next succeeding Business Day with the same force and effect as if made on such bond payment date, and no interest shall accrue for the period after such bond payment date.

Section 606. Nonpresentment of Bonds. If any Bond is not presented for payment when the principal thereof becomes due at maturity, if funds sufficient to pay such Bond have been made available to the Paying Agent all liability of the University to the Registered Owner thereof for the payment of such Bond shall forthwith cease, determine and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall be the duty of the Paying Agent to hold such funds, without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of the Registered Owner of such Bond, who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such funds for any claim of whatever nature on his part under this Resolution or on, or with respect to, said Bond. If any Bond is not presented for payment within one year following the date when such Bond becomes due at maturity, the Paying Agent shall repay to the University the funds, without liability for interest thereon, theretofore held by it for payment of such Bond, and such Bond shall, subject to the defense of any applicable statute of limitation, thereafter be an unsecured obligation of the University, and the Registered Owner thereof shall be entitled to look only to the University for payment, and then only to the extent of the amount so repaid to it by the Paying Agent, and the University shall not be liable for any interest thereon and shall not be regarded as a trustee of such money.

ARTICLE VII

DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT OF FUNDS

Section 701. Deposits of Moneys. Moneys in each of the funds and accounts created by and referred to in this Resolution shall be deposited in a bank or banks located in the State of Missouri which are members of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and all such bank deposits shall be continuously and adequately secured by the banks holding such deposits as provided by the laws of the State of Missouri.

Section 702. Investment of Funds. Moneys held in any fund or account referred to in this Resolution may be invested by the University in accordance with the Federal Tax Certificate, at the direction of the Board, in Permitted Investments. No such investment shall be made for a period extending longer than to the date when the moneys invested may be needed for the purpose for which such fund or account was created. All interest on any investments held in any fund or account shall

accrue to and become a part of such fund or account. In determining the amount held in any fund or account under any of the provisions of this Resolution, obligations shall be valued as of the Valuation Date of each year at the market value thereof (exclusive of accrued interest). If and when the amount held in any fund or account shall be in excess of the amount required by the provisions of this Resolution, the University may direct that such excess be paid and credited to the System Revenue Fund, except that the earnings on investments held in the Rebate Fund shall accrue to and become a part of such fund and shall not be transferred to any other fund or account.

ARTICLE VIII

PARTICULAR COVENANTS OF THE UNIVERSITY

The Board covenants and agrees, on behalf of itself and the University, with each of the owners of any of the Bonds, that so long as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding and unpaid, as follows:

Section 801. Performance of Duties. The Board will faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants, undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in this Resolution and in each and every Bond executed and delivered hereunder; that it will promptly pay or cause to be paid from the Net Revenues herein pledged the principal of and interest on every Bond issued hereunder, on the dates and in the places and manner prescribed in such Bond, and that it will, prior to the maturity of each installment of interest and prior to the maturity of each such Bond, at the times and in the manner prescribed herein, deposit or cause to be deposited, from the Net Revenues pledged, the amounts of money specified herein. All Bonds, when paid, shall be cancelled by the Paying Agent, and shall be delivered to or upon the order of the Board.

Section 802. Legal Authority. The Board is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Missouri to create and issue the Bonds, it is lawfully qualified to pledge the Net Revenues of the Project and other income pledged to the payment of the Bonds in the manner prescribed herein and has lawfully exercised such rights, all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Bonds has been duly and effectively taken, and the Bonds in the hands of the owners thereof are and will be valid and enforceable special obligations of the University in accordance with their terms.

Section 803. Rate Covenant. The Board will, so long as any of the Bonds are Outstanding against the System, operate and maintain continuously the System and the facilities and services afforded by the same and will fix, maintain and collect such reasonable rates and charges for the use of the System and its facilities as, in the judgment of the Board, will provide Revenues sufficient to (a) pay the reasonable cost of operating and maintaining the System, (b) provide and maintain the System Revenue Fund and the Debt Service Account in amounts adequate to pay promptly the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due, (c) provide reasonable and adequate reserve funds for the payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds and (d) enable the University in each year to have Net Revenues from the System in an amount that will not be less than 110% of the amount required to be paid by the University in such fiscal year on account of both principal and interest on all revenue bonds of the System Outstanding at the time (after deducting from such principal and interest amount the amount of funds, if any, deposited in the principal and interest account for a series of revenue bonds that is available to pay interest on such revenue bonds during the construction of System facilities financed in whole or in part by such revenue bonds). The System will be operated on a fiscal year basis beginning July 1 each year and ending June 30 in the following year.

Nothing in this Resolution contained shall be construed to prevent the continuous collection of reasonable rates, charges, and fees for the use of said System and facilities after the Bonds issued

pursuant to this Resolution shall have been paid and redeemed, together with all interest thereon, nor to prevent at that time the pledge and application of said revenues to the payment of other bonds which may be issued by the Board.

Section 804. Restrictions on Mortgage or Sale of System. The Board will not sell or otherwise dispose of the System or any material part thereof, or any extension or improvement thereof; provided, however, the Board may at any time permanently abandon the use of, or sell at fair market value, any of its System facilities, provided that:

- (a) It is in full compliance with all covenants and undertakings in connection with all of its bonds then Outstanding and payable from the revenues of the System, or any part thereof;
- (b) In the event of sale, it will apply the proceeds to either (1) redemption of outstanding bonds in accordance with the provisions governing repayment of bonds in advance of maturity or (2) replacement of the facility so disposed of by another facility, the revenues of which shall be incorporated into the System as hereinbefore provided;
- (c) It certifies, prior to any abandonment of use, that the facility to be abandoned is no longer economically feasible of producing Net Revenues; and
- (d) It certifies that the estimated Net Revenues of the remaining System facilities for the then next succeeding fiscal year (and any other revenues pledged as security) plus the estimated net revenues of the facilities, if any, to be added to the System satisfy the earnings test provided for in **Article IX** hereof governing the issuance of additional bonds.

Section 805. Operation of the System. From and after the date when the Bonds are issued and delivered, the System shall be maintained by the Board so long as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding. The Board will not do or suffer any act or thing whereby the System or any part thereof might or could be impaired, and at all times it will maintain, preserve, and keep the real and tangible property constituting the System and every part thereof in good condition, repair, and working order and maintain, preserve, and keep all structures and equipment pertaining thereto and every part and parcel thereof in good condition, repair, and working order. The System and the facilities thereof and therein shall be operated and maintained under the direction and supervision of the President of the University, subject to the direction of the Board, and all fees, charges, and other revenues received from the operation of said System shall be collected by said officer, through agents or employees thereunto duly authorized, and all such revenues shall be deposited at least weekly by the University in a bank which is a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and shall be credited by the appropriate officer of the University, on the books of the University, to the System Revenue Fund, as provided in Section 601 hereof.

Section 806. Occupancy. The Board will adopt and maintain, so long as any Bonds are Outstanding against the System, such parietal rules, rental rates, fees, and charges for the use of the System facilities as may be necessary to (a) assure maximum use and occupancy of said facilities and (b) pay the cost of maintenance and operation and, together with other pledged Net Revenues, provide for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds and Parity Bonds Outstanding against the System and required reserves therefor.

Section 807. Insurance. The Board will carry and maintain fire and extended coverage insurance upon all of the properties forming a part of the System insofar as the same are of an insurable nature, such insurance to be of the character and coverage and in an amount as would normally be carried by state educational institutions in the State of Missouri operating a similar housing system. In the event of loss or damage, the University, with reasonable dispatch, will use the proceeds of such insurance in

reconstructing and replacing the property damaged or destroyed, or, if such reconstruction or replacement be unnecessary, then the University will pay and deposit the proceeds of such insurance into the System Revenue Fund. The University in operating the System will use its best efforts to maintain liability protection through the provisions of the State Legal Defense Fund under Section 105.711 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended. In the event such liability protection is not available, the University will use its best efforts to obtain public liability insurance in such amounts as would normally be maintained by state educational institutions in the State of Missouri operating a similar housing system and the proceeds derived from such insurance shall be used in paying the claims on account of which such proceeds were received. The cost of all insurance obtained pursuant to the requirements of this subsection shall be paid as a Current Expense out of the revenues of the System.

Section 808. Books, Records and Accounts. The Board will keep accurate financial records and proper books and accounts (entirely separate but within all other records and accounts of the University) in which complete and correct entries will be made of all dealings and transactions of or in relation to the System of the University. Such accounts shall show the amount of revenues received from the System, the application of such revenues, and all financial transactions in connection therewith. Said books shall be kept by the University according to standard governmental accounting practices.

Section 809. Annual Budget. Prior to the commencement of each fiscal year, the President of the University will cause to be prepared and submitted to the Board for approval and filed in the office of the President of the University a budget setting forth the estimated receipts and expenditures of the System for the next succeeding fiscal year. Said annual budget shall be prepared in accordance with the requirements of the laws of Missouri and shall contain all information as shall be required by such laws.

Section 810. Annual Audit and Operating Data. Annually, promptly after the end of the fiscal year, the Board will cause an audit to be made of the System and of the University for the preceding fiscal year by a certified public accountant or firm of certified public accountants to be employed by the Board for that purpose, or, where appropriate, by the state auditing official, reflecting in reasonable detail the financial condition and record of operation of the University, the System, Revenues and Current Expenses.

Within 30 days after the completion of such audits and not later than 180 days following the end of the fiscal year to which the audits apply, copies thereof shall be filed in the office of the President of the University and mailed or e-mailed to the Lender. Such audits shall at all times during the usual business hours be open to the examination and inspection by any owner of any of the Bonds, or by anyone acting for or on behalf of such owner.

As soon as possible after the completion of such annual audit, the Board shall review such audit, and if any audit discloses that proper provision has not been made for all of the requirements of this Resolution and the law under which the Bonds are issued, the University covenants and agrees that it will promptly cure such deficiency and will promptly proceed to increase the rates, fees and charges to be charged for the use and services furnished by the System as may be necessary to adequately provide for such requirements.

The Board shall mail or e-mail to the Lender not later than 180 days following the end of each fiscal year certain the following operating data of the University and System: (i) occupancy of the System for the most recent fiscal year, Revenues and Expenditures of the System (to the extent not otherwise covered in an audit) for the most recent fiscal year, and enrollment of the University during the most recent fiscal year. This requirement may be met by forwarding by mail or e-mail to Lender a copy of the University's annual report filed on the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board's Electronic Municipal Market Access website in connection with any publicly-offered Parity Bonds.

Section 811. Bondowner's Right of Inspection. The owner or owners of any of the Bonds shall have the right at all reasonable times to inspect the System and all records, accounts and data relating thereto, and any such owner shall be furnished all such information concerning the System and the operation thereof which such owner may reasonably request.

Section 812. Contract. The provisions of this Resolution shall constitute a contract between the University, acting by and through the Board, and the Owners of the Bonds herein authorized to be issued, and each of them, and the said Board hereby pledges its good faith to the performance of each and every covenant thereof.

Section 813. Parietal Rules and Regulations. The Board hereby establishes and covenants to enforce, as long as any of the Bonds are Outstanding and unpaid, the parietal rules and regulations hereinafter set forth, in order to assure maximum occupancy and use of the facilities and services afforded by the System:

- (a) If more space or facilities from whatever source become available for residence hall, housing, social or dining purposes than are required by students applying for such space or facilities, the officers of the University are hereby directed to give preference and priority to the use of the buildings and facilities constituting the System, to the extent practicable, in the occupancy and use of all of the space and services thereof, even if such preference results in the non-use of all or a part of the space or facilities available at the University, in any other residence hall, house, or any other building which may be suitable or usable for residence hall, housing, social or dining purposes and concerning which no parietal rules and regulations heretofore have been adopted.
- (b) To the extent that any surplus space or facilities become available in the System while any of the Bonds remain Outstanding and unpaid, it shall be the duty of the officers of the University to enforce a rule requiring occupancy and use, to the extent practicable and legal, of the buildings and facilities constituting the System. The University acknowledges that it requires freshmen students, unless living with a relative or guardian, married or over the age of 21, to reside in System accommodations, and that the University has this policy for educational purposes and does not intend to change the policy.
- (c) The officers of the University are hereby directed to utilize and to cause the utilization of the buildings and facilities constituting the System in such manner as will yield revenues sufficient to carry out the obligations of the University under this Resolution, to the end that the Bonds and interest thereon may be promptly paid as the same become due.
- (d) The rules hereby established shall be amended from time to time as conditions arise so as to meet changing conditions and better assure the fulfillment of the pledges herein made.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, it is specifically provided that the parietal rules herein set forth shall be subordinate to the parietal rules heretofore adopted by the Board insofar as there may be any conflict between them.

Section 814. Tax Covenants.

(a) The Board will comply with the provisions of the Code relating to the exclusion from federal gross income of the interest on the Bonds. The Board will, in addition, adopt such other Board resolutions and take such other actions as may be necessary to comply with the Code and with all other applicable future laws, regulations, published rulings and judicial decisions, in order to ensure that the interest on the Bonds will remain excludable from federal gross income, to the extent any such actions can be taken by the Board. The Board covenants and agrees that it will not take any action, or fail to take

any action, if any such action or failure to take action would adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Bonds under Section 103 of the Code.

- (b) The Board covenants and agrees that it will use the proceeds of the Bonds as soon as practicable and with all reasonable dispatch for the purpose for which the Bonds are issued as hereinbefore set forth, and that it will not directly or indirectly use or permit the use of any proceeds of the Bonds or any other funds of the Board, or take or omit to take any action that would cause the Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148(a) of the Code. To that end, the Board will comply with all requirements of Section 148 of the Code to the extent applicable to the Bonds. If at any time the Board is of the opinion that for purposes of this Section it is necessary to restrict or limit the yield on the investment of any moneys held by the Board under this Resolution, the Board shall take such action as may be necessary.
- (c) Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Board agrees that there shall be paid from time to time all amounts required to be rebated to the United States pursuant to Section 148(f) of the Code and any temporary, proposed or final Treasury Regulations as may be applicable to the Bonds from time to time. This covenant shall survive payment in full or defeasance of the Bonds. The Board specifically covenants to pay or cause to be paid to the United States any rebatable arbitrage at the times and in the amounts determined in accordance with the Federal Tax Certificate.

ARTICLE IX

ADDITIONAL BONDS

Section 901. Prior Lien Bonds. The Board covenants and agrees that so long as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding and unpaid, the University will not issue any additional bonds or other debt obligations payable out of the Net Revenues of the System or any part thereof which are superior to the Bonds.

Section 902. Parity Bonds. The University may issue one or more additional series of revenue bonds to finance the construction or acquisition of additional facilities to be secured by a parity lien on and equally and ratably payable from the Net Revenues pledged to the Bonds ("Parity Bonds"), provided in each instance that:

- (a) The University is in compliance with all covenants and undertakings in connection with all bonds of the University then Outstanding; and
- (b) Any additional facility or facilities to be built or acquired from the proceeds of the additional Parity Bonds is or are to be made a part of the System, and its or their revenues are pledged as additional security for the additional Parity Bonds and all bonds Outstanding against the System; and

(c) Either:

(i) The University's controller (or equivalent) shall provide a certificate showing that the Net Revenues derived by the University from the operation of the System for the fiscal year immediately preceding the issuance of the additional Parity Bonds, were equal to at least 110% of the combined average annual requirements for principal and interest on all of the Existing Bonds, the Bonds and Parity Bonds then Outstanding and payable from the Net Revenues of the System, including the additional Parity Bonds proposed to be issued; or

(ii) The University's controller (or equivalent) shall provide a certificate showing the Net Revenues of the System for the fiscal year immediately following the fiscal year in which the facility or facilities to be constructed or acquired with the proceeds of the additional Parity Bonds are expected to be placed in operation (the "Test Year"), are expected to be at least 110% of the combined average annual debt service requirements in all fiscal years including and after the Test Year for principal and interest on all of the Existing Bonds, the Bonds and Parity Bonds then Outstanding and payable from the Net Revenues of the System and on the additional Parity Bonds to be issued. The estimate of future Net Revenues shall be based on occupancy of not more than ninety percent (90%). The estimate of future Net Revenues of the then-existing System shall be based on actual Net Revenues for the fiscal year next preceding the issuance of additional Parity Bonds, as adjusted, if necessary, to reflect the schedule of rates, fees and charges to become effective in succeeding fiscal years to and including the Test Year, and after giving recognition to any anticipated changes in Current Expenses of the System.

Additional Parity Bonds of the University issued under the conditions set forth in this Section shall stand on a parity with the Bonds and shall enjoy complete equality of lien on and claim against the Net Revenues of the System with the Bonds, and the University shall make equal provision for paying said bonds and the interest thereon out of the System Revenue Fund.

Section 903. Junior Lien Bonds. The University may issue one or more additional series of revenue bonds or other revenue obligations payable out of the Net Revenues of the System, which are junior and subordinate to the Bonds and the Parity Bonds provided at the time of the issuance of such additional revenue bonds or obligations the following conditions are met:

- (a) The University shall not be in default in the payment of principal of or interest on the Bonds or any Parity Bonds or in making any payment at the time required to be made into the respective Funds and Accounts created by and referred to in this Resolution or any Parity Resolutions; and
- (b) The additional facilities to be constructed or acquired from the proceeds of the additional junior lien bonds are made part of the System, and the Net Revenues derived therefrom are pledged as security for the additional bonds and all bonds Outstanding against the System.

Such additional revenue bonds or obligations shall be junior and subordinate to the Bonds so that if at any time the University shall be in default in paying either interest on or principal of the Bonds, or if the University shall be in default in making any payments required to be made by it under the provisions of **Section 602** hereof, the University shall make no payments of either principal of or interest on said junior and subordinate revenue bonds or obligations until said default or defaults be cured. In the event of the issuance of any such junior and subordinate revenue bonds or obligations, the University, subject to the provisions aforesaid, may make provision for paying the principal of and interest on said revenue bonds or obligations out of moneys in the System Revenue Fund; such payments of principal of and interest on said revenue bonds or obligations shall be payable on the same dates as the Bonds and the Parity Bonds.

Section 904. Refunding Bonds. The University may, if it finds it desirable, without complying with the provisions of Section 902 hereof, to issue refunding revenue bonds to refund any of the Bonds under the provisions of any law then available if, taking into account the issuance of the proposed refunding revenue bonds and the application of the proceeds thereof and any other funds available to be applied to such refunding, the average annual debt service requirements on all Outstanding revenue bonds of the University payable out of the Net Revenues of the System will not be increased, and the refunding revenue bonds so issued shall enjoy complete equality of pledge with any of the Bonds that are not refunded, if any, upon the Net Revenues of the System.

ARTICLE X

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 1001. Acceleration of Maturity in Event of Default. The University covenants and agrees that if any of the following events ("Events of Default") shall occur:

- (a) Default by the University in the due and punctual payment of any interest on any Bond or Parity Bond;
- (b) Default by the University in the due and punctual payment of the principal of or redemption premium, if any, on any Bond, whether at the stated maturity or accelerated maturity thereof, or at the redemption date thereof;
- (c) Default in the performance or observance of any other of the covenants, agreements or conditions on the part of the University in this Resolution or in the Bonds contained (other than a default described in (a) or (b) above) or in any other document or instrument that secures or otherwise relates to the debt and obligations hereby secured, and the continuance thereof for a period of 30 days after written notice thereof shall have been given to the University by the Owners of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding; provided, however, if any default shall be such that it cannot be corrected within such 30-day period, it shall not constitute an Event of Default if corrective action is instituted by the University within such period and diligently pursued until the default is corrected; or
 - (d) The University files a petition as a debtor under the United States Bankruptcy Code.

At any time thereafter and while such Event of Default shall continue the Owners of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding may, by written notice to the University filed in the office of the President of the University or delivered in person to said President, declare the principal of all Bonds then Outstanding to be due and payable immediately, and upon any such declaration given as aforesaid, all of said Bonds shall become and be immediately due and payable, anything in this Resolution or in the Bonds contained to the contrary notwithstanding. This provision, however, is subject to the condition that if at any time after the principal of said Outstanding Bonds shall have been so declared to be due and payable, all arrears of interest upon all of said Bonds, except interest accrued but not yet due on such Bonds, and all arrears of principal upon all of said Bonds shall have been paid in full and all other defaults, if any, by the University under the provisions of this Resolution and under the provisions of the statutes of the State of Missouri shall have been cured, then and in every such case the owners of a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, by written notice to the University given as hereinbefore specified may rescind and annul such declaration and its consequences, but no such rescission or annulment shall extend to or affect any subsequent default or impair any rights consequent thereon.

Section 1002. Remedies. The provisions of this Resolution, including the covenants and agreements herein contained, shall constitute a contract between the University and the owners of the Bonds, and the owner or owners of not less than 10% in principal amount of the Bonds at the time Outstanding shall have the right for the equal benefit and protection of all owners of Bonds similarly situated:

(a) by mandamus or other suit, action or proceedings at law or in equity to enforce the rights of such owner or owners against the University and its officers, agents and employees, and to require and compel duties and obligations required by the provisions of this Resolution or by the constitution and laws of the State of Missouri;

- (b) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law to require the University, its officers, agents and employees to account as if they were the trustees of an express trust; and
- (c) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law to enjoin any acts or things which may be unlawful or in violation of the rights of the owners of the Bonds.

Section 1003. Limitation on Rights of Bondowners. No one or more Bondowners secured hereby shall have any right in any manner whatever by his or their action to affect, disturb or prejudice the security granted and provided for herein, or to enforce any right hereunder, except in the manner herein provided, and all proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained for the equal benefit of all owners of such Outstanding Bonds.

Section 1004. Remedies Cumulative. No remedy conferred herein upon the Bondowners is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each such remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to every other remedy and may be exercised without exhausting and without regard to any other remedy conferred herein. No waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the owner of any Bond shall extend to or affect any subsequent default or breach of duty or contract or shall impair any rights or remedies thereon. No delay or omission of any Bondowner to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or acquiescence therein. Every substantive right and every remedy conferred upon the owners of the Bonds by this Resolution may be enforced and exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In case any suit, action or proceedings taken by any Bondowner on account of any default or to enforce any right or exercise any remedy shall have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or shall have been determined adversely to such Bondowner, then, and in every such case, the University and the Owners of the Bonds shall be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, and all rights, remedies, powers and duties of the Bondowners shall continue as if no such suit, action or other proceedings had been brought or taken.

Section 1005. No Obligation to Levy Taxes. Nothing contained in this Resolution shall be construed as imposing on the University any duty or obligation to levy any taxes either to meet any obligation incurred herein or to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds.

ARTICLE XI

DEFEASANCE

Section 1101. Defeasance. When any or all of the Bonds or the interest payments thereon shall have been paid and discharged, then the requirements contained in this Resolution and the pledge of Revenues made hereunder and all other rights granted hereby shall terminate with respect to the Bonds or the interest payments thereon so paid and discharged. Bonds or the interest payments thereon shall be deemed to have been paid and discharged and no longer be Outstanding within the meaning of this Resolution if there shall have been deposited with the Paying Agent, or other commercial bank or trust company located in the State of Missouri and having full trust powers, at or prior to the stated maturity of said Bonds or the interest payments thereon, in trust for and irrevocably appropriated thereto, moneys and/or Defeasance Obligations which, together with the interest to be earned on any such money or Defeasance Obligations, will be sufficient for the payment of the principal or redemption price of said Bonds, and/or interest to accrue on such Bonds to the stated maturity or redemption date, as the case may be, or if default in such payment shall have occurred on such date, then to the date of the tender of such payments; provided, however, that if any such Bonds shall be redeemed prior to the stated maturity thereof, (a) the University shall have elected to redeem such Bonds, and (b) either notice of such

redemption shall have been given, or the University shall have given irrevocable instructions to the Paying Agent to redeem such Bonds. Any moneys and Defeasance Obligations that at any time shall be deposited with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank or trust company by or on behalf of the University, for the purpose of paying and discharging any of the Bonds or the interest payments thereon, shall be and are hereby assigned, transferred and set over to the Paying Agent or other bank or trust company in trust for the respective Owners of the Bonds, and such moneys shall be and are hereby irrevocably appropriated to the payment and discharge thereof. All moneys and Defeasance Obligations deposited with the Paying Agent or other bank or trust company shall be deemed to be deposited in accordance with and subject to all of the provisions contained in this Resolution. In the event of an advance refunding of any of the Bonds, the University shall cause to be delivered to the Paying Agent a verification report of an independent nationally recognized certified public accountant of the mathematical computation of the adequacy of the escrow established to provide for the payment of the Bonds.

ARTICLE XII

AMENDMENTS

Section 1201. Amendments. The rights and duties of the University, the Board and the Bondowners, and the terms and provisions of the Bonds or of this Resolution, may be amended or modified at any time in any respect by resolution of the Board with the written consent of the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, such consent to be evidenced by an instrument or instruments executed by such Owners and duly acknowledged or proved in the manner of a deed to be recorded, and such instrument or instruments shall be filed with the Secretary of the Board, but no such modification or alteration shall:

- (a) extend the maturity of any payment of principal or interest due upon any Bond;
- (b) effect a reduction in the amount which the University is required to pay by way of principal of or interest on any Bond;
- (c) permit the creation of a lien on the Revenues of the System prior or equal to the lien of the Existing Bonds, the Bonds or Parity Bonds hereafter issued on a parity with the Bonds as hereinbefore provided;
 - (d) permit preference or priority of any Bonds over any other Bonds; or
- (e) reduce the percentage in principal amount of Bonds required for the written consent to any modification or alteration of the provisions of this Resolution.

Any provision of the Bonds or of this Resolution may, however, be amended or modified by resolution duly adopted by the Board at any time in any respect with the written consent of the Owners of all of the Bonds at the time Outstanding.

Without the consent of Bondowners, the Board may amend or supplement the Resolution for the purpose of curing any formal defect, omission, inconsistency or ambiguity therein or in connection with any other change therein which is not materially adverse to the interests of the Bondowners.

Any and all modifications made in the manner hereinabove provided shall not become effective until there has been filed with the Secretary of the Board a copy of the resolution of the University hereinabove provided for, duly certified, as well as proof of consent to such modification by the requisite

Owners of the Bonds then Outstanding. It shall not be necessary to note on any of the Outstanding Bonds any reference to such amendment or modification.

The University shall furnish to the Paying Agent a copy of any amendment to the Bonds or this Resolution which affects the duties or obligations of the Paying Agent under this Resolution. Any amendment to this Resolution shall be furnished to the Lender not less than 15 days prior to its effective date.

ARTICLE XIII

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 1301. Notices, Consents and Other Instruments. Any notice, consent, request, direction, approval, objection or other instrument required by this Resolution to be signed and executed by the Bondowners may be in any number of concurrent writings of similar tenor and may be signed or executed by such Bondowners in person or by agent appointed in writing. Proof of the execution of any such instrument or of the writing appointing any such agent and of the ownership of Bonds, other than the assignment of the ownership of a Bond, if made in the following manner, shall be sufficient for any of the purposes of this Resolution, and shall be conclusive in favor of the University and the Paying Agent with regard to any action taken, suffered or omitted under any such instrument, namely:

- (a) The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such instrument may be proved by a certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who by law has power to take acknowledgments within such jurisdiction that the person signing such instrument acknowledged before such officer the execution thereof, or by affidavit of any witness to such execution.
- (b) The fact of ownership of Bonds, the amount or amounts, numbers and other identification of Bonds, and the date of holding the same shall be proved by the Bond Register.

Section 1302. Further Authority. The officers of the University, including without limitation the Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary of the Board, the President, the Comptroller, the Vice President for Administration, Finance and Planning, and the General Counsel of the University, are hereby authorized and directed to execute all documents and agreements and take such actions as they may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out and perform the purposes of this Resolution to make alterations, changes or additions in the foregoing agreements, statements, instruments and other documents herein approved, authorized and confirmed which they may approve and the execution or taking of such action shall be conclusive evidence of such necessity or advisability.

Section 1303. Severability. If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution, or of the Bonds, shall ever be held to be unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Resolution, or of the Bonds, but this Resolution, and the Bonds shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provision had not been contained herein or therein.

Section 1304. Governing Law; Venue; Waiver of Jury Trial. This Resolution shall be governed exclusively by and constructed in accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Missouri. Any action arising out of, or concerning, the Bonds or this Resolution shall be brought only in the Circuit Court of Adair County, Missouri. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the University irrevocably and voluntarily waives any right it may have to a trial by jury with respect to any controversy or claim between the Borrower and the Lender, whether arising in contract or tort or by statute, including but not limited to any controversy or claim that arises out of or relates to the Proposal, the Bonds or this Resolution.

Section 1305. Electronic Transactions. The transaction described herein may be conducted and this Resolution and related documents may be sent, received or stored by electronic means. Copies, telecopies, facsimiles, electronic files and other reproductions of original executed documents shall be deemed to be authentic and valid counterparts of such original documents for all purposes, including the filing of any claim, action or suit in the appropriate court of law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any redemption notices to be sent to the Lender will be sent in hard copy form.

Section 1306. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its adoption by the Board.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.]

ADOPTED by th	e Board of Governor	s of Truman Stat	e University this	April 15	2020
	c board of dovernor	o or rruman otai		ANDIH IJ.	4040.

[SEAL]	Chair of the Board		
Secretary of the Board			

CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, Secretary of the Board of Governors of Truman State University, hereby certify that the above and foregoing constitutes a full, true and correct copy of the Resolution authorizing the issuance of Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2020, of the University, duly adopted by at least two-thirds of the members of the Board of Governors of Truman State University at a meeting held on April 15, 2020; that said Resolution has not been modified, amended or repealed, and is in full force and effect as of the date hereof; and that the same is on file in my office.

WITNESS my hand this May 1, 2020.	
	Secretary of the Board

EXHIBIT A

FORM OF BOND

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA STATE OF MISSOURI

Registered No. R- **Registered** \$15,245,000

FORTY-FIVE

TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY

HOUSING SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BOND SERIES 2020

Interest Rate Maturity Date Dated Date

% June 1, 2033 May 1, 2020

Registered Owner:

REGIONS CAPITAL ADVANTAGE, INC.

Principal Amount:

MILLION

TWO

HUNDRED

THOUSAND DOLLARS

FIFTEEN

TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY, a state educational institution organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri (the "University"), acting through its Board of Governors (the "Board"), for value received, hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner shown above or registered assigns, but solely out of the net income and revenues of the System as hereinafter provided, the Principal Amount shown above on the Maturity Date shown above, unless called for redemption prior to said Maturity Date, and to pay interest on said Principal Amount at the Interest Rate per annum shown above (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) from the Dated Date shown above or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for (likewise payable solely out of the net income and revenues of the System), payable semiannually on June 1 and December 1 in each year, beginning December 1, 2020, until said Principal Amount has been paid.

The principal of and redemption premium, if any, on this Bond shall be paid by check, electronic transfer, or draft at maturity or upon earlier redemption to the Person in whose name such Bond is registered on the Bond Register at the maturity or redemption date thereof, upon presentation and surrender of such Bond at the principal payment office of the University's Comptroller (the "Paying Agent"). The interest payable on this Bond on any Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the Person in whose name this Bond is registered on the Bond Register at the close of business on the Record Date for such interest (being the 15th day, whether or not a Business Day, of the calendar month next preceding the Interest Payment Date) by check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent to such Registered Owner at the address shown on the Bond Register or by electronic transfer to such Registered Owner upon written notice signed by such Registered Owner and given to the Paying Agent not less than 15 days prior to the Record Date for such interest containing the electronic transfer instructions including the bank, address, ABA routing number and account number to which such Registered Owner wishes to have such transfer directed and an acknowledgment that an electronic transfer fee may be applicable. The principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on this Bond shall be payable in any coin or currency which, on

the respective dates of payment thereof, is legal tender for the payment of debts due the United States of America.

Notwithstanding any provision herein or in the Resolution to the contrary, the Bonds are not subject to presentation and surrender for the payment of scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemptions pursuant to Section 301(b) of the Resolution.

This Bond is one of a duly authorized series of bonds of the University designated "Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2020," aggregating the principal amount of \$15,245,000 (the "Bonds"), issued by the University for the purpose of providing funds to (a) currently refund the Refunded Bonds and (b) pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds, under the authority of and in full compliance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Missouri, including particularly Chapter 176 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, and pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by the Board (the "Resolution"), the Bonds being equally and ratably secured by a pledge of the net income and revenues derived by the University from the operation and ownership of the System. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Resolution.

At the option of the University, Bonds may be called for redemption and payment prior to the stated maturity thereof on June 2, 2027 and thereafter, as a whole or in part at any time in such amounts for each maturity as shall be determined by the University in inverse order of mandatory sinking fund redemptions at the Redemption Price of 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest thereon to the Redemption Date.

The Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption and payment prior to maturity pursuant to the mandatory redemption requirements of the Resolution at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount represented by the Bonds being redeemed plus accrued interest to the Redemption Date, on June 1, 2021, and on each June 1 thereafter until maturity, as follows:

<u>Year</u>	Principal Amount
2021	\$ 45,000
2022	1,135,000
2023	1,160,000
2024	1,185,000
2025	1,205,000
2026	1,230,000
2027	1,250,000
2028	1,275,000
2029	1,305,000
2030	1,325,000
2031	1,350,000
2032	1,375,000
2033 [†]	1,405,000

Bonds shall be redeemed only in the principal amount of \$100,000 and integral multiples of \$5,000 in excess thereof. When less than all of the Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, Bonds shall be selected by the Paying Agent in \$100,000 units of principal amount by lot or in such other equitable

[†] Final Maturity

manner as the Paying Agent may determine, and shall be redeemed in inverse order of mandatory sinking fund redemption date.

Notice of redemption, unless waived, is to be given by the Paying Agent by mailing an official redemption notice by first class mail at least 10 days prior to the Redemption Date, to each Registered Owner of each of the Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the Bond Register. Notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall, on the Redemption Date, become due and payable at the Redemption Price therein specified, and from and after such date (unless the University defaults in the payment of the Redemption Price) such Bonds or portions of Bonds shall cease to bear interest. Notice of optional redemption given in accordance with the Resolution shall be irrevocable.

The Bonds are special obligations of the University payable solely from, and secured as to the payment of principal and interest by a pledge of, the net income and revenues derived from the operation and ownership of the System (excluding amounts payable to the United States pursuant to Section 148 of the Code), and said net income and revenues shall be set aside for that purpose in a special fund held pursuant to the Resolution. This Bond shall not be deemed to be a general obligation or an indebtedness of the State of Missouri or of the University or of the Board or of the individual members of said Board.

The Bonds stand on a parity with respect to the payment of principal and interest from the net income and revenues of the System and in all other respects with two series of Parity Bonds described in the Resolution, Outstanding as of the date of this Bond in the aggregate principal amount of \$27,830,000. Under the conditions set forth in the Resolution, the University has the right to issue additional Parity Bonds payable from the same source and secured by the same revenues as the Bonds; provided, however, that such additional Parity Bonds may be so issued only in accordance with and subject to the covenants, conditions and restrictions relating thereto set forth in the Resolution.

The Board hereby covenants and agrees with each and every owner of the Bonds to keep and perform all covenants and agreements contained in the Resolution; and that it will apply the proceeds of the Bonds to the purposes for which said Bonds are authorized to be issued; that it will continuously operate the aforesaid System at all times when the University is in regular session; that it will adopt such regulations for student housing, and will fix and maintain such reasonable rates and charges for the use of the facilities of said System as will in its judgment provide revenues sufficient to pay the reasonable cost of operating and maintaining said properties, and to provide and maintain the System Revenue Fund in an amount adequate promptly to pay the principal of and the interest on the Bonds, as the same become due; and that it will collect, account for, and apply the aforesaid revenues, all in accordance with and as provided for by the Resolution pursuant to which this Bond is issued. Reference is made to the Resolution for a description of the covenants and agreements made by the Board with respect to the collection, segregation and application of the revenues of the System, the nature and extent of the security of the Bonds, the rights, duties and obligations of the University with respect thereto, and the rights of the owners thereof.

The Bonds are issued in fully-registered form in the denomination of \$100,000 or any integral multiple of \$5,000 in excess thereof. This Bond may be exchanged at the office of the Paying Agent for a like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same maturity of other authorized denominations upon the terms provided in the Resolution.

The Bonds may be transferred in whole or in part, and the Lender agrees that it will only offer, sell, pledge, transfer or exchange this Bond (a) in accordance with an available exemption from the registration requirements of Section 5 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, (b) in accordance with any applicable state securities laws, and (c) in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution. This Bond may be

transferred or exchanged, as provided in the Resolution, only on the Bond Register kept for that purpose at the office of the Paying Agent, upon surrender of this Bond together with a written instrument of transfer or exchange satisfactory to the Paying Agent duly executed by the Registered Owner or the Registered Owner's duly authorized agent, and thereupon a new Bond or Bonds in any authorized denomination having the same Maturity Date and in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Resolution and upon payment of the charges therein prescribed. The University and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the Person in whose name this Bond is registered on the Bond Register as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price hereof and interest due hereon and for all other purposes and neither the University nor the Paying Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit under the Resolution until the Certificate of Authentication hereon shall have been executed by the Paying Agent.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND DECLARED that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of the Bonds have existed, happened and been performed in due time, form and manner as required by law, and that before the issuance of the Bonds, provision has been duly made for the collection and segregation of the revenues of the System and for the application of the same as herein provided.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY has executed this Bond by causing it to be signed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Chair of its Board of Governors and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of said Board, and its official seal to be affixed hereto or imprinted hereon, and this Bond to be dated the Dated Date shown above.

TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY

This Bond is one of the Bonds of the issue described in the within-mentioned Resolution. Registration Date:	By Chair of the Board of Governors
COMPTROLLER, Paying Agent	(Seal)
	ATTEST:
By Comptroller	Secretary of the Board of Governors

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto

Print or Type Name, Address and Social Security or Taxpayer Identification Number of Transferee

the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints agent to transfer the within Bond on the books kept by the Paying Agent for the registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated	

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name of the Registered Owner as it appears upon the face of the within Bond in every particular.

Medallion Signature Guarantee:

EXHIBIT B

PROPOSAL

April 15, 2020

Michael Garzanelli, Comptroller **Truman State University** 100 East Normal Avenue Kirksville, Missouri 63501

Adam Pope, Senior Vice President Columbia Capital Management, LLC 6330 Lamar Avenue Overland Park, Kansas 66202

Reference:

Up to \$15,245,000 Non-Bank Qualified Term Loan (the "Loan")

Dear Mr. Garzanelli & Mr. Pope:

Regions Capital Advantage, Inc. (the "Lender") is pleased to furnish this Term Sheet (this "Term Sheet") to Truman State University (the "Borrower"). This Term Sheet contains an outline of suggested terms only, and it does not represent a commitment by the Lender or create any obligation whatsoever on the Lender's part. It is for discussion purposes only, and the outlined terms have not received final approval by the appropriate lending authorities within Regions Capital Advantage, Inc.

Borrower: Truman State University

Lender:

Regions Capital Advantage, Inc.

Role of Lender:

The Lender and its representatives are not registered municipal advisors and do not provide advice to municipal entities or obligated persons with respect to municipal financial products or the issuance of municipal securities (including regarding the structure, timing, terms and similar matters concerning municipal financial products or municipal securities issuances) or engage in the solicitation of municipal entities or obligated persons for the provision by non-affiliated persons of municipal advisory services and/or investment advisory services. With respect to this Term Sheet and any other information, materials or communications provided by the Lender: (a) the Lender and its representatives are not recommending an action to any municipal entity or obligated person; (b) the Lender and its representatives are not acting as an advisor to any municipal entity or obligated person and do not owe a fiduciary duty pursuant to Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 to any municipal entity or obligated person with respect to this Term Sheet, or any other information, materials or communications; (c) the Lender and its representatives are acting for their own interests; and (d) the Borrower has been informed that the Borrower should discuss this Term Sheet and any such other information, materials or communications with any and all internal and external advisors and experts that the Borrower deems appropriate before acting on this Term Sheet or any such other information, materials or communications.

Privately Negotiated Loan:	The Borrower acknowledges and agrees that the Lender is purchasing the Debt Instrument (as hereinafter defined) in evidence of a privately negotiated loan and in that connection the Debt Instrument shall not be (i) assigned a separate rating by any municipal securities rating agency, (ii) registered with The Depository Trust Company or any other securities depository, (iii) issued pursuant to any type of offering document or official statement or (iv) assigned a CUSIP number by Standard & Poor's CUSIP Service.
Purpose:	The proceeds of the Loan will be used to refund the \$20,495,000 Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 and fund costs of issuance (collectively, the "Refunding").
Loan Amount:	Up to \$15,245,000.
Structure:	Non-Bank Qualified Tax-Exempt Revenue Backed Term Loan evidenced by a promissory note, bond or other debt instrument (the "Debt Instrument").
Interest Rate:	The Loan is a Tax-Exempt, Non-Bank Qualified Loan.
	The Loan will bear interest at a fixed rate per annum of 1.92% through the maturity date. The aforementioned interest rate assumes a closing date on or before May 15, 2020. If closing occurs after May 15, 2020, the rate is subject to change based upon current market conditions.
Default Rate:	The interest rate otherwise applicable to the Debt Instrument plus 5%.
Repayment:	Interest will be payable semi-annually (calculated on the basis of a 30 day month and a 360 day year) on each June 1 and December 1, commencing December 1, 2020. Annual principal payments will be payable each June 1, commencing June 1, 2021. Graduated principal payments due as set forth in Exhibit A. All payments are due on the same calendar day of the month.
Maturity Date:	June 1, 2033. Maturity date must fall on a payment due date.
Prepayment:	The Borrower may not prepay any part of the principal balance through June 1, 2027. After June 1, 2027, the Borrower may prepay all or any part of the principal balance of the Loan, on not less than 10 days' written notice, with no penalty. The Borrower's notice of its intent to prepay shall be irrevocable. The Borrower agrees that its payment shall not in any way reduce, affect, or impair any other obligation of the Borrower under the Loan. All partial prepayments of principal shall be applied in the inverse order of maturities or sinking fund redemption date. The Loan will not include a put option.

Other Fees, Costs and Expenses:

The Borrower will be responsible for all out-of-pocket fees, costs and expenses of the Lender (including, without limitation, counsel fees and expenses and costs associated with lien searches and recordation, if any) incurred in connection with the negotiation, execution, delivery, administration and enforcement of the Loan (the "Loan Documents"). In consideration of the undertakings of the Lender hereunder, and recognizing that in connection herewith the Lender will be incurring such fees, costs and expenses, the Borrower agrees to reimburse the Lender for all such fees, costs and expenses, regardless of whether, or to what extent, any of the transactions contemplated hereby are consummated. Lender's Counsel fees are not to exceed \$10,000 assuming the Borrower's Bond Counsel will prepare all Loan Documents.

Security:

A pledge of and a perfected first lien upon, net revenues (the "Net Revenues") derived from the operation and ownership of the housing system (the "System") as defined in the Bond Resolution associated with the Series 2013, Series 2015, and Series 2016 Housing System Revenue Bonds.

Determination of Taxability:

Upon the occurrence of a Determination of Taxability of the Loan, caused by an action or inaction of the Borrower, the Borrower agrees: (i) the rate of interest on the Loan will be increased to a rate providing an after-tax yield on the then outstanding principal amount of the Loan at least equal to the after-tax yield the Lender could have received if a Determination of Taxability had not occurred (the "Taxable Rate"); (ii) to pay to the Lender on demand an amount equal to the difference between (1) the amount of interest that would have been paid to the Lender from the date on which interest on the Loan is first included in the gross income of the Lender for Federal income tax purposes to and including the date of the Determination of Taxability, had the Loan borne interest at the Taxable Rate during such period, and (2) the amount of interest actually paid to the Lender during such period, and (iii) to pay to the Lender on demand, any interest, penalties or charges owed by the Lender as a result of interest on the Loan becoming included in the gross income of the Lender, together with any and all attorneys' fees, court costs, or other out-of-pocket costs incurred by the Lender in connection therewith. The taxable equivalent rate is 2.60%.

Representations and Warranties:

Usual and customary for this type of financing.

Real Estate Provisions:

Usual and customary for this type of financing.

Covenants: Usual and customary for this type of financing, including but not limited to the following:

- (1) The Borrower shall deliver to the Lender each of the following, in form and substance satisfactory to the Lender:
 - (i.) Audited financial statements of the System within 180 days after the end of each of the Borrower's fiscal year's;
 - (ii.) Audited financial statemens of the University within 180 days after the end of each of the Borrower's fiscal year's; and
 - (iii.) Operating data of the University and System within 180 days after the end of each of the Borrower's fiscal year's.
- (2) The Borrower shall achieve and observe certain financial covenants to include, without limitation, the following:
 - (i.) Net Revenues from the System shall not be less than 110% of the amount of total principal and interest on all revenue bonds of the System as further defined in the Bond Resolution; and
 - (ii.) The Borrower must meet the Additional Bonds Test of at least 110% prior to the issuance of any additional bonds, as further defined in the Bond Resolution.

Defaults: Usual and customary for this type of financing.

Remedies: The Lender shall have all of the rights and remedies set forth in the Loan Documents, and available at law and in equity, for the enforcement thereof.

Legal Opinions:

As an additional condition precedent to the Lender making the Loan, the Borrower shall provide, among other things, the following opinions to the Lender:

an opinion of bond counsel in form and substance satisfactory to the Lender and its counsel in all respects, which shall include opinions to the effect that (a) the Borrower has the authority under the laws of the State of Missouri to issue the Debt Instrument and execute and deliver the Loan Documents, (b) that the Debt Instrument has been duly issued and each of the Debt Instrument and the other Loan Documents to which the Borrower is a party has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Borrower, (c) that each of the Debt Instrument and the other Loan Documents to which the Borrower is a party is a valid and binding obligation of the Borrower, duly enforceable in accordance with its terms, (d) that the Debt Instrument is payable from Net Revenues of the System, and (e) that interest on the Debt Instrument is (i) excludable from gross income of the holders thereof for federal income tax purposes and (ii) is exempt from present income taxation in the State of Missouri. If applicable, the Lender will be provided with an opinion of counsel to the Borrower in customary form acceptable to the Lender.

Transfer Provisions:

The Lender shall maintain the right to transfer and/or assign, in whole or in part, its rights hereunder, the Debt Instrument and/or the Loan, or, in either case, any interest therein, in its sole and absolute discretion. The Lender agrees that in the event of any transfer of the Bonds it will only transfer the Bonds to an entity that is an "accredited investor" as defined in Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933 and/or a "qualified institutional buyer" as defined in Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933. The Borrower may not assign its rights hereunder or under any of the Loan Documents to any person without the prior written consent of the Lender. The Lender will agree in the Loan Documents to comply with any and all applicable state and federal laws in any assignment or transfer of the Bonds or the Loan Documents.

Disclaimer:

This Term Sheet describes some of the basic terms and conditions proposed to be included in the documents between the Lender and the Borrower. This Term Sheet does not purport to summarize all the conditions, covenants, representations, warranties, assignments, events of default, cross default, acceleration events, remedies or other provisions that may be contained in documents required to consummate this financing.

US Patriot Act:

The Borrower represents and warrants to the Lender that neither it nor any of its principals, shareholders, members, partners, or Affiliates, as applicable, is a Person named as a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person (as defined in Presidential Executive Order 13224) and that it is not acting, directly or indirectly, for or on behalf of any such person. The Borrower further represents and warrants to the Lender that the Borrower and its principals, shareholders, members, partners, or Affiliates, as applicable, are not directly or indirectly, engaged in, nor facilitating, the transactions contemplated by this transaction on behalf of any Person named as a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person.

Confidentiality:

The Borrower acknowledges and agrees that this Term Sheet and the information set forth herein is confidential and proprietary, and further agrees to keep this Term Sheet and the information set forth herein CONFIDENTIAL. The Borrower shall not disclose this Term Sheet or any of its material terms to anyone, without the prior written consent of the Lender in each instance, except as such disclosure is required by law or regulation or as a result of any legal or administrative procedure.

Waiver of Jury Trial:

To the extent permitted by applicable law, each of the Borrower and the Lender irrevocably and voluntarily waives any right it may have to a trial by jury with respect to any controversy or claim between the Borrower and the Lender, whether arising in contract or tort or by statute, including but not limited to any controversy or claim that arises out of or relates to this Term Sheet, the Debt Instrument or any of the other Loan Documents. This provision is a material inducement for the Lender's determination to make the Loan and for the parties to enter into the Loan Documents.

Loan vs. Security:

The Lender will acquire the Debt Instrument as evidence of the Loan. In accordance therewith the Lender will want the closing documents and the Loan Documents to reflect that the Lender is acting as a lender and not an investor and accordingly, the Lender may request certain changes to make sure the closing documentation is consistent herewith.

Governing Law: State of Missouri

Thank you for providing the Lender with this opportunity to be involved in a financial partnership with the Borrower. The Lender is willing to discuss the terms reflected herein through 11:00am CST on April 16, 2020. After such date, terms, conditions and pricing may change based on prevailing market conditions and further discussion will be at Lender's sole discretion. We are grateful for your consideration and remain available to promptly respond to any questions that you may have regarding this document. We look forward to hearing from you.

EXHIBIT A

<u>Principal</u> <u>Repayment Schedule</u>

1-Jun	Principal
2021	\$ 45,000
2022	1,135,000
2023	1,160,000
2024	1,185,000
2025	1,205,000
2026	1,230,000
2027	1,250,000
2028	1,275,000
2029	1,305,000
2030	1,325,000
2031	1,350,000
2032	1,375,000
2033	 1,405,000
=	
Total	\$ 15,245,000

EXHIBIT B

In the event Borrower requests Lender to move forward with the approval process after discussion of the aforementioned terms and conditions contained in the Term Sheet, Borrower agrees to reimburse Lender on demand for all out of pocket expenses incurred by Lender if the transaction fails to close for any reason other than Lender's decision not to approve the transaction. Such expenses shall include, but not be limited to, legal expenses incurred by Lender.

ACCEPTANCE:
Borrower does hereby agree to all provisions contained in Exhibit B.
Borrower Signature:
TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY
Ву:
Name:
Title:

Truman State University

Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 | Refunding Results

Final Savings	Results					
Bond	Settlement	Refunded	Present Value	Present Value	True Interest	Change in
Transaction	Date	Principal	Savings \$	Savings %	Cost %	Interest Cost
Series 2020	5/1/2020	14,890,000	1,334,178	8.960%	1.920%	-1.626%

Fiscal Year	Debt Service Before Refunding	Less Refunded Debt Service	Non-Refunded Debt Service	Series 2020 Debt Service	Total Debt Service After Refunding	Budgetary Savings
2020	1,156,476	258,876	897,600	-	897,600	258,876
2021	1,432,753	1,432,753	-	362,096	362,096	1,070,657
2022	1,431,153	1,431,153		1,426,840	1,426,840	4,313
2023	1,433,153	1,433,153	-	1,430,048	1,430,048	3,105
2024	1,433,553	1,433,553	*	1,432,776	1,432,776	777
2025	1,432,353	1,432,353	-	1,430,024	1,430,024	2,329
2026	1,434,553	1,434,553	-	1,431,888	1,431,888	2,665
2027	1,431,103	1,431,103	-	1,428,272	1,428,272	2,831
2028	1,431,753	1,431,753	-	1,429,272	1,429,272	2,481
2029	1,434,878	1,434,878	-	1,434,792	1,434,792	86
2030	1,430,838	1,430,838	-	1,429,736	1,429,736	1,102
2031	1,430,050	1,430,050	-	1,429,296	1,429,296	754
2032	1,432,315	1,432,315	-	1,428,376	1,428,376	3,939
2033	1,432,090	1,432,090	-	1,431,976	1,431,976	114
Total	19,777,016	18,879,416	897,600	17,525,392	18,422,992	1,354,024

Re	funded	Bonds	
	~		

Average Coupon 3.546%

Series 2020 Bonds

True Interest Cost 1.920%



Truman State University
Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds
Series 2020 - Front Loaded Savings

Sources & Uses

Dated 05/01/2020 | Delivered 05/01/2020

Sources	Ωf	Eum	de
Sources	C)T	run	15

Par Amount of Bonds	\$15,245,000.00
Total Sources	\$15,245,000.00
Uses Of Funds	
Costs of Issuance	96,123.75
Deposit to Current Refunding Fund	15,148,876.25
Total Uses	\$15,245,000.00

Truman State University
Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds
Series 2020 - Front Loaded Savings

Pricing Summary

Maturity	Type of Bond	Coupon	Yield	Maturity Value	Price	Dollar Price
06/01/2033	Term 1 Coupon	1.920%	1.920%	15,245,000.00	100.000%	15,245,000.00
Total	-	-	¥	\$15,245,000.00	-	\$15,245,000.00
Bid Informati	ion		***************************************			
Par Amount of B	onds					\$15,245,000.00
Gross Production	1					\$15,245,000.00
Bid (100.000%)						15,245,000.00
Total Purchase P	rice			**************************************		\$15,245,000.00
Bond Year Dolla	nrs					\$118,770.42
Average Life						7.791 Years
Average Coupon						1.9200000%
Net Interest Cost	(NIC)					1.9200000%
True Interest Cos	st (TIC)					1.9198756%

Truman State University
Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds
Series 2020 - Front Loaded Savings

Debt Service Comparison

Date	Total P+I	Existing D/S	Net New D/S	Old Net D/S	Savings
06/30/2020		897,600.00	897,600.00	1,156,476.25	258,876.25
06/30/2021	362,096.00	-	362,096.00	1,432,752.50	1,070,656.50
06/30/2022	1,426,840.00	•	1,426,840.00	1,431,152.50	4,312.50
06/30/2023	1,430,048.00	-	1,430,048.00	1,433,152.50	3,104.50
06/30/2024	1,432,776.00	_	1,432,776.00	1,433,552.50	776.50
06/30/2025	1,430,024.00	-	1,430,024.00	1,432,352.50	2,328.50
06/30/2026	1,431,888.00	-	1,431,888.00	1,434,552.50	2,664.50
06/30/2027	1,428,272.00	-	1,428,272.00	1,431,102.50	2,830.50
06/30/2028	1,429,272.00	-	1,429,272.00	1,431,752.50	2,480.50
06/30/2029	1,434,792.00	-	1,434,792.00	1,434,877.50	85.50
06/30/2030	1,429,736.00	-	1,429,736.00	1,430,837.50	1,101.50
06/30/2031	1,429,296.00	-	1,429,296.00	1,430,050.00	754.00
06/30/2032	1,428,376.00	•	1,428,376.00	1,432,315.00	3,939.00
06/30/2033	1,431,976.00	-	1,431,976.00	1,432,090.00	114.00
Total	\$17,525,392.00	\$897,600,00	\$18,422,992.00	\$19,777,016,25	\$1,354,024,25

PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net)

Net PV Cashflow Savings @ 2.009%(AIC)	1,334,178.31
Net Present Value Benefit	\$1,334,178.31
Net PV Benefit / \$14,890,000 Refunded Principal	8.960%
Net PV Benefit / \$15,245,000 Refunding Principal	8.752%
Refunding Bond Information	
Refunding Dated Date	5/01/2020
Refunding Delivery Date	5/01/2020

Truman State University
Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds
Series 2020 - Front Loaded Savings

Debt Service Schedule

0601/2021 45,000.00 1.920% 146,352.00 191,352.00 12/01/2021 - - 45,920.00 145,920.00 12,802.920.00 12/01/2022 1,135,000.00 1.920% 135,024.00 135,024.00 135,024.00 12/01/2023 1,160,000.00 1.920% 135,024.00 1,295,024.00 120,5024.00 12/01/2023 - 123,888.00 123,888.00 133,888.00 133,888.00 06/01/2024 1,185,000.00 1.920% 1212,512.00 112,512.00 112,512.00 12/01/2024 - - 112,512.00 1317,512.00 127,512.00 127,512.00 12/01/2025 1,205,000.00 1.920% 112,512.00 1,317,512.00 127,512.00 127,512.00 100,944.00 1,330,944.00 160,944.00 10,944.00 160,944	Date	Principal	Coupon	Interest	Total P+I
0601/2021	06/01/2020	-	-	-	*
12/01/2021	12/01/2020	-	•	170,744.00	170,744.00
06/01/2022	06/01/2021	45,000.00	1.920%	146,352.00	191,352.00
1201/2022	12/01/2021	•	-	145,920.00	145,920.00
06/01/2023	06/01/2022	1,135,000.00	1.920%	145,920.00	1,280,920.00
12/01/2023	12/01/2022	=	-	135,024.00	135,024.00
06/01/2024	06/01/2023	1,160,000.00	1.920%	135,024.00	1,295,024.00
1201/2024 -	12/01/2023	-	•	123,888.00	123,888.00
1201/2024 -	06/01/2024	1,185,000.00	1.920%	123,888.00	1,308,888.00
12/01/2025	12/01/2024	•	-		112,512.00
12/01/2025	06/01/2025	1,205,000.00	1.920%	112,512.00	1,317,512.00
12/01/2026	12/01/2025		_	100,944.00	100,944.00
12/01/2026	06/01/2026	1,230,000.00	1.920%	100,944.00	1,330,944.00
06/01/2027	12/01/2026	· · ·			· · ·
12/01/2027		1.250.000.00	1.920%	*	
06/01/2028 1,275,000.00 1.920% 77,136.00 1,352,136.00 12/01/2028 - - 64,896.00 64,896.00 1369,896.00 06/01/2029 1,305,000.00 1.920% 64,896.00 13,698,996.00 12/01/2029 - - 52,368.00 52,368.00 15,2368.00 1,377,368.00 1,377,368.00 1,377,368.00 1,377,368.00 1,377,368.00 1,377,368.00 39,648.00 39,648.00 39,648.00 1,389,648.00 1,389,648.00 1,389,648.00 1,26688.00 26,688.00 26,688.00 26,688.00 1,401,688.00 12/01/2032 1,375,000.00 1,920% 26,688.00 1,401,688.00 13,488.00 13,488.00 13,488.00 13,488.00 1,418,488.00 1,41	WELLOW AND ADDRESS OF THE RESERVE AND ADDRESS OF		h		
12/01/2028		1.275.000.00	1.920%	•	* * *
06/01/2029 1,305,000.00 1.920% 64,896.00 1,369,896.00 12/01/2029 - - 52,368.00 52,368.00 06/01/2030 1,325,000.00 1.920% 52,368.00 1,377,368.00 12/01/2031 1,350,000.00 1.920% 39,648.00 1.389,648.00 12/01/2031 - - 26,688.00 26,688.00 06/01/2032 1,375,000.00 1.920% 26,688.00 1,401,688.00 12/01/2032 - - 13,488.00 13,488.00 06/01/2033 1,405,000.00 1.920% 13,488.00 1,418,488.00 Total \$15,245,000.00 - \$2,280,392.00 \$17,525,392.00 Yield Statistics Bond Year Dollars \$118,770.42 Average Life 7.791 Years Average Coupon 1.920000% Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.920000% True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.9198756% Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.9198756% All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.0089743% IRS Form 8038 Net Inter	12/01/2028	-	•		
12/01/2029		1.305,000.00	1.920%	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
06/01/2030 1,325,000.00 1,920% 52,368.00 1,377,368.00 12/01/2030 - - 39,648.00 39,648.00 06/01/2031 1,350,000.00 1,920% 39,648.00 1,389,648.00 12/01/2031 - - 26,688.00 26,688.00 06/01/2032 1,375,000.00 1,920% 26,688.00 1,401,688.00 12/01/2032 - - 13,488.00 13,488.00 06/01/2033 1,405,000.00 1,920% 13,488.00 1,418,488.00 Total \$15,245,000.00 - \$2,280,392.00 \$17,525,392.00 Yield Statistics Bond Year Dollars \$118,770.42 Average Life 7.791 Years Average Coupon 1.9200000% Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.9200000% True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.9198756% Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.9198756% All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.0089743% IRS Form 8038 Net Interest Cost 1.9200000%		-			
12/01/2030		1 325,000,00	1.920%		
06/01/2031 1,350,000,00 1,920% 39,648.00 1,389,648.00 12/01/2031 - - 26,688.00 26,688.00 06/01/2032 1,375,000.00 1,920% 26,688.00 1,401,688.00 12/01/2032 - - 13,488.00 13,488.00 06/01/2033 1,405,000.00 1,920% 13,488.00 1,418,488.00 Yield Statistics Sond Year Dollars Average Life Average Coupon Statistics Statistics		***************************************	***		•
12/01/2031 - 26,688.00 26,688.00 06/01/2032 1,375,000.00 1.920% 26,688.00 1,401,688.00 12/01/2032 - - 13,488.00 13,488.00 06/01/2033 1,405,000.00 1,920% 13,488.00 1,418,488.00 Total \$15,245,000.00 - \$2,280,392.00 \$17,525,392.00 Yield Statistics Bond Year Dollars \$118,770.42 Average Life 7.791 Years Average Coupon 1.9200000% Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.9200000% True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.9198756% Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.9198756% All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.0089743% IRS Form 8038 Net Interest Cost 1.9200000%		1 350 000 00	1 920%	· ·	
06/01/2032 1,375,000.00 1,920% 26,688.00 1,401,688.00 12/01/2032 - - 13,488.00 13,488.00 06/01/2033 1,405,000.00 1.920% 13,488.00 1,418,488.00 Total \$15,245,000.00 - \$2,280,392.00 \$17,525,392.00 Yield Statistics Bond Year Dollars \$118,770.42 Average Life 7.791 Years Average Coupon 1.9200000% Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.9200000% True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.9198756% Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.9198756% All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.0089743% IRS Form 8038 Net Interest Cost 1.9200000%		1,550,500.50	-		
12/01/2032 - 13,488.00 13,488.00 06/01/2033 1,405,000.00 1.920% 13,488.00 1,418,488.00 Total \$15,245,000.00 - \$2,280,392.00 \$17,525,392.00 Yield Statistics Bond Year Dollars \$118,770.42 Average Life 7.791 Years Average Coupon 1.9200000% Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.9200000% True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.9198756% Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.9198756% All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.0089743% IRS Form 8038 Net Interest Cost 1.9200000%		1 375 000 00	1 920%		·
06/01/2033 1,405,000.00 1.920% 13,488.00 1,418,488.00 Total \$15,245,000.00 - \$2,280,392.00 \$17,525,392.00 Yield Statistics Bond Year Dollars \$118,770.42 Average Life 7.791 Years Average Coupon 1.9200000% Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.9200000% True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.9198756% Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.9198756% All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.0089743% IRS Form 8038 Net Interest Cost 1.9200000%		1,375,600.00	1.75070		
Total \$15,245,000.00 - \$2,280,392.00 \$17,525,392.00 Yield Statistics Bond Year Dollars \$118,770.42 Average Life 7.791 Years Average Coupon 1.9200000% Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.9200000% True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.9198756% Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.9198756% All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.0089743% IRS Form 8038 Net Interest Cost 1.9200000%		1 405 000 00	1 920%	-	•
Yield Statistics Bond Year Dollars \$118,770.42 Average Life 7.791 Years Average Coupon 1.9200000% Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.9200000% True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.9198756% Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.9198756% All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.0089743% IRS Form 8038 Net Interest Cost 1.9200000%					
Average Life 7.791 Years Average Coupon 1.9200000% Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.9200000% True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.9198756% Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.9198756% All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.0089743% IRS Form 8038 1.9200000% Net Interest Cost 1.9200000%	Notice properties and the second account of the properties of the second account of the				
Average Coupon 1.9200000% Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.9200000% True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.9198756% Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.9198756% All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.0089743% IRS Form 8038 1.9200000% Net Interest Cost 1.9200000%	Bond Year Dollars				\$118,770.42
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.9200000% True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.9198756% Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.9198756% All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.0089743% IRS Form 8038 Net Interest Cost 1.9200000%	Average Life				7.791 Years
True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.9198756% Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.9198756% All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.0089743% IRS Form 8038	Average Coupon				1.9200000%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.9198756% Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.9198756% All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.0089743% IRS Form 8038	Net Interest Cost (NIC)				1.9200000%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.9198756% All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.0089743% IRS Form 8038 Net Interest Cost 1.9200000%					1.9198756%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.0089743% IRS Form 8038 Net Interest Cost 1.9200000%		rposes			1.9198756%
Net Interest Cost 1.9200000%	MICHIGAN CONTRACTOR CO				2.0089743%
	IRS Form 8038				
Weighted Average Maturity 7.791 Years					1.9200000%
	Weighted Average Maturity				7.791 Years

Truman State University
Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds
Series 2020 - Front Loaded Savings

Debt Service Schedule

Date	Principal	Coupon	Interest	Total P+I
06/30/2020	-	-	-	-
06/30/2021	45,000.00	1.920%	317,096.00	362,096,00
06/30/2022	1,135,000.00	1.920%	291,840.00	1,426,840.00
06/30/2023	1,160,000.00	1.920%	270,048.00	1,430,048.00
06/30/2024	1,185,000.00	1.920%	247,776.00	1,432,776.00
06/30/2025	1,205,000.00	1.920%	225,024.00	1,430,024.00
06/30/2026	1,230,000.00	1.920%	201,888.00	1,431,888.00
06/30/2027	1,250,000.00	1.920%	178,272.00	1,428,272.00
06/30/2028	1,275,000.00	1.920%	154,272.00	1,429,272.00
06/30/2029	1,305,000.00	1.920%	129,792.00	1,434,792.00
06/30/2030	1,325,000.00	1.920%	104,736.00	1,429,736.00
06/30/2031	1,350,000.00	1.920%	79,296.00	1,429,296.00
06/30/2032	1,375,000.00	1.920%	53,376.00	1,428,376.00
06/30/2033	1,405,000.00	1.920%	26,976.00	1,431,976.00
Total	\$15,245,000.00	-	\$2,280,392.00	\$17,525,392,00

Yield Statistics

Bond Year Dollars	\$118,770.42
Average Life .	7.791 Years
Average Coupon	1.9200000%
Net Interest Cost (NIC)	1.9200000%
True Interest Cost (TIC)	1.9198756%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes	1.9198756%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC)	2 0089743%

IRS Form 8038

Net Interest Cost 1,9200000	0/
Net Interest Cost 1.9200000	70
Weighted Average Maturity 7.791 Yea	**
Weighted Average Maturity 7.791 Yea	15

Truman State University
Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds
Series 2020 - Front Loaded Savings

Current Refunding Escrow

Date	Principal	Rate	Receipts	Disbursements	Cash Balance
05/01/2020	-	-	-	-	-
06/01/2020	15,148,876.25	-	15,148,876.25	15,148,876.25	-
Total	\$15,148,876.25		\$15,148,876.25	\$15,148,876.25	_
Investment Par	rameters				
Investment Model [PV, GIC, or Securities]				PV Discount
Default investment	yield target				Unrestricted
Cost of Investments	Purchased with Bond Proc	eeds			15,148,876.25
Total Cost of Invest	ments				\$15,148,876.25
Target Cost of Inves	stments at bond yield			overvier to the control of the contr	\$15,124,774.40
Yield to Receipt					-3.57E-12
Yield for Arbitrage	Purposes				1.9198756%

Truman State University
Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds
Series 2020 - Front Loaded Savings

Debt Service To Maturity And To Call

	Refunded	Interest to				
Date	Bonds	Cali	D/S To Call	Principal	Interest	Refunded D/S
05/01/2020	-	-	-	-	-	-
06/01/2020	14,890,000.00	258,876.25	15,148,876.25	-	258,876,25	258,876.25
12/01/2020	-	•	•	-	258,876.25	258,876.25
06/01/2021	•	-	-	915,000.00	258,876.25	1,173,876.25
12/01/2021	*				240,576.25	240,576.25
06/01/2022	-	-	-	950,000.00	240,576.25	1,190,576.25
12/01/2022	-	-	-	-	221,576.25	221,576.25
06/01/2023	-	-	-	990,000.00	221,576.25	1,211,576.25
12/01/2023		•	•	•	201,776.25	201,776.25
06/01/2024	-	-	•	1,030,000.00	201,776.25	1,231,776.25
12/01/2024		-	*	-	181,176.25	181,176.25
06/01/2025	-		-	1,070,000.00	181,176.25	1,251,176.25
12/01/2025	_	-	_	-	159,776.25	159,776.25
06/01/2026	-	-	-	1,115,000.00	159,776.25	1,274,776.25
12/01/2026		-		-	143,051.25	143,051.25
06/01/2027	-	-	-	1,145,000.00	143,051.25	1,288,051.25
12/01/2027	-	-	*	•	125,876.25	125,876.25
06/01/2028	-	-	-	1,180,000.00	125,876.25	1,305,876.25
12/01/2028	-	_		-	107,438.75	107,438.75
06/01/2029	•	-	-	1,220,000.00	107,438.75	1,327,438.75
12/01/2029	-		-	*	87,918.75	87,918.75
06/01/2030	_	-	-	1,255,000.00	87,918.75	1,342,918.75
12/01/2030	-	-	-	-	67,525.00	67,525.00
06/01/2031		-		1,295,000.00	67,525.00	1,362,525.00
12/01/2031			-	-	46,157.50	46,157.50
06/01/2032	•	-	-	1,340,000.00	46,157.50	1,386,157.50
12/01/2032	-	-	=		23,545.00	23,545.00
06/01/2033	•	_	-	1,385,000.00	23,545.00	1,408,545.00
Total	\$14,890,000.00	\$258,876.25	\$15,148,876.25	\$14,890,000.00	\$3,989,416.25	\$18,879,416.25
N.C. 1.1 04						
Yield Statistic	CS	and the second s				
Average Life						7.555 Years
	ge Maturity (Par Basis)					7.555 Years
Average Coupon						3.5461215%
Refunding Bo	ond Information					
Refunding Dated	Date					5/01/2020
Refunding Delive						5/01/2020
returning Denve	ary Date					31017202

Truman State University
Housing System Refunding Revenue Bonds
Series 2020 - Front Loaded Savings

Summary Of Bonds Refunded

Issue	Maturity	Туре	of Bond	Coupon	Maturity Value	Call Date	Call Price
Dated 4/18/2013	Delivered 4/18/2	013					
Series 2013	06/01/2021	Serial	Coupon	4.000%	915,000	06/01/2020	100.000%
Series 2013	06/01/2022	Serial	Coupon	4.000%	950,000	06/01/2020	100.000%
Series 2013	06/01/2023	Serial	Coupon	4.000%	990,000	06/01/2020	100.000%
Series 2013	06/01/2024	Serial	Coupon	4.000%	1,030,000	06/01/2020	100,000%
Series 2013	06/01/2025	Serial	Coupon	4.000%	1,070,000	06/01/2020	100.000%
Series 2013	06/01/2026	Serial	Coupon	3,000%	1,115,000	06/01/2020	100,000%
Series 2013	06/01/2027	Serial	Coupon	3.000%	1,145,000	06/01/2020	100.000%
Series 2013	06/01/2028	Serial	Coupon	3.125%	1,180,000	06/01/2020	100.000%
Series 2013	06/01/2029	Serial	Coupon	3.200%	1,220,000	06/01/2020	100.000%
Series 2013	06/01/2030	Serial	Coupon	3,250%	1,255,000	06/01/2020	100.000%
Series 2013	06/01/2031	Serial	Coupon	3.300%	1,295,000	06/01/2020	100.000%
Series 2013	06/01/2032	Serial	Coupon	3.375%	1,340,000	06/01/2020	100.000%
Series 2013	06/01/2033	Serial	Coupon	3.400%	1,385,000	06/01/2020	100.000%
Subtotal	-	**************************************		### ##################################	\$14,890,000	-	-
Total	-	**************************************		-	\$14,890,000	_	